
AGENDA 
RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27,2016 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . . . By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the 
process of representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material 
available to the Commission are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood 
Avenue. Your City Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and 
participate in Rio Dell Planning Commission meetings often. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

E. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1) 2016/0927.01 - Approve Minutes of the August 23,2016 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 1 

F. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Commission on any matter not on this 
agenda and over which the Commission has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the 
Commission or staff is not intended. Items requiring Commission action not listed on this 
agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for consideration if the Commission directs, 
unless a finding is made by at least 2I3rds of the Commission that the item came up after the 
agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action. Please limit 
comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

G. SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSIONS 

1) 2016/0927.02 - Adopt Resolution No. PC-098-2016 Approving Lot Line Adjustment 
for Dennis Wendt, APN's 205-111-028, 205-111-029,205-111-030, 
205-111-050 and 205-111-017 at 1053 Northwestern Ave. 
(DISCUSSIONIPOSSIBLE ACTION) 12 

2) 2016/0927.03 - Adopt Resolution No. PC-100-2016 Approving a one-year extension 
of the Teasley Subdivision at 364 Center Street, APN 052-301-012 
(DISCUSSIONIPOSSIBLE ACTION) 49 



3) 2016/0927.04 - Regulations for Cargo/Shipping Containers as Accessory 
Structures (DISCUSSION) 65 

4) 2016/0927.05 - Adopt Resolution No. PC-102-2016 Approving the Safety Element 
of the General Plan (DISCUSSION) 68 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need 
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office 
of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility 
to the meeting. 

The next Regu/ar Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for 
Tuesday, October 25,2016,2016 at 6:30 p.m. 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
AUGUST 23, 2016 

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission was called to order at 6:30 
p.m. by Commissioner Angeloff. 

Present were Commissioners Angeloff, Marks and Woodall and newly seated 
Commissioners Kemp and Strahan. 

Others present were Community Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk 
Dunham. 

CEREMONIAL 

Swearing in of Planning Commission Alternate Sandy Blakely for a three (3) Year Term 
Ending December 31. 2019 
Mr. Blakely was not present to be sworn in so the item was tabled to the next regular 
meeting. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to approve the consent calendar including 
approval of minutes of the April 12, 2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 3-0; 
Commissioners Kemp and Strahan abstained. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

None 

Commissioner Angeloff welcomed the newly appointed Planning Commissioners Arnie 
Kemp and Mike Strahan. 

• 
SCHEDULED MAnERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSIONS 

Community Development Director Caldwell suggested a change in the agenda order to 
allow the Lot line Adjustment for Stephen Adams to be heard at this time. 

Adopt Resolution No. PC 098-2016 Approving Lot line Adjustment for Stephen Adams. 
APN No.'s 052-202-009 and 052-202-010. LLA 16-01 

1 



RIO DelL PLANNING COMMISSION 

AUGUST 23, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 2 

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said the 
proposed lot line adjustment will adjust approximately 233 square feet from APN 052-
202-009 (5,066 square foot parcel) to APN 052-202-010 (4,056 square foot parcel). He 
stated that the project site is located at the intersection of W. Center St. and Pacific Ave. 
and noted that APN 052-202-009 is developed with a single family residence and 
detached garage and APN 052-202-010 is vacant. He said the intent is to adjust the flag 
area to the Adams parcel. 

He further reported that both parcels are legal substandard lots created in compliance 
with state and local regulations and the proposed lot line adjustment does not result in 
any nonconformity in regard to setbacks or lot coverage and does not require the 
relocation of any easements or utilities. Also, the proposed lot line adjustment is in 
conformance with all applicable policies of the Zoning Regulations, General Plan and 
Building Regulations and is Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15305 of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 

As such, staff's recommendation is to adopt Resolution PC-098-2016 as presented 
subject to the Conditions of Approval as attached which are standard conditions that 
apply to all lot line adjustments. 

Commissioner Strahan questioned the possible requirement for a Record of Survey. 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained if the new boundary lines cannot 
be accurately described and located from existing monuments or other methods, they 
would need to prepare a Record of Survey. If a Record of Survey is not required, the 
surveyor would need to sign a declaration. 

Commissioner Angeloff questioned the slope of the subject parcels. 
• 

Community Development Director Caldwell indicated the slope was estimated to be less 
than 5%. 

Commissioner Angeloff suggested the resolution contain language to state that it has 
been determined that the average slope is less than 20% as required for CEQA 
exemption. 

2 



RIO DelL PLANNING COMMISSION 
AUGUST 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Commissioner Angeloff called for public comment on the proposed lot line adjustment; 
no public comment was received. 

Motion was made by Woodall/Kemp to approve Resolution No. PC 098-2016 approving 
the Adams/Price Lot Line Adjustment as revised. Motion carried 5-0. 

Adopt Resolution No. PC 097-2016 recommending the City Council amend Section 17.40 
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reflect the referenced sections 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said staff 
recently discovered an error in the Enforcement Regulations, Section 17.40 of the 
ROMe. He said the two referenced sections 17.25.030 and 17.25.120 actually referred 
to "Adult Entertainment" and "Camping." He said those sections were recodified to 
Sections 17.30.030 and 17.30.170 respectively and this merely cleans up the language. 

Commissioner Angeloff called for public comment on the proposed resolution; no public 
comment was received. 

Motion was made by Woodall/Angeloff to adopt Resolution No. PC-097-2016 
recommending the City Council amends Section 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(ROMe) to accurately reflect the referenced sections. Motion carried 5-0. 

Adopt Resolution No. PC-099-2016 Recommending the City Council amend Section 
17.30.020, Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) to (1) 
Establish Maximum Building Heights and Floor Areas based on Size of Parcel and to 
allow for exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain findings can be made 
and (2) Establish regulations regarding Cargo Containers 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and explained the 
current zoning regulations restrict the height for detached accessory structures to 15 
feet and over the past few year's staff has been approached by several citizens with 
regard to that limitation in residential zones. He noted that a number of people had to 
modify the pitch of their roof to meet the 15 foot requirement. 

He said that detached accessory buildings are allowed in residential zones, provided 
they are accessory to and subordinate to the principal use of the site and serves a 
purpose which does not change the character of the residential neighborhood. He 
explained that many jurisdictions allow greater heights on larger parcels and exception 

3 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 

AUGUST 23, 2016 MINUTES 

Page 4 

provisions without the requirement of going through the variance process. As such, 
staff is recommending amendments regarding building heights and size limitations to 
Section 17.30.020 of the RDMC, Accessory Uses and Buildings. 

Community Development Director Caldwell reviewed the proposed changes to allow 
maximum building height of: 

• 15 feet on lots 20,000 square feet or less 
• 26 feet on lots larger than 20,000 feet; and 

To allow maximum gross floor area of: 

• 1,000 square feet on lots 20,000 square feet or less 
• 1,500 square feet on lots larger than 20,000 square feet 

He noted that if an applicant wishes to modify the height or gross floor area of an 
accessory building there would be an exception provision whereby the Planning 
Commission may modify the height and/or floor area requirements through the use 
permit process, although certain findings would have to be made. 

Staff explained that the use permit process allows neighbors to comment and in 
addressing potential concerns of the neighborhood, the Planning Commission may 
impose certain conditions of approval such as increased setback requirements. 

Commissioner Angeloff commented that large recreational vehicles would need at least 
15 feet for clearance and what this provision precludes is detached accessory structures 
with an apartment on the top floor. 

C(lmmunity Development Director Caldwell said this'type of use is generally looked at as 
a residential use rather than as a detached accessory use. 

Commissioner Woodall questioned the detached accessory structure at 126 Fern St. 
with what appears to have an apartment on the top story. 

City Clerk Dunham commented that as she recalls, the building permit was only 
approved for a detached shop/garage. 

4 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 
AUGUST 23,2016 MINUTES 
PageS 

Community Development Director Caldwell asked for a consensus from the Commission 
whether a 26 foot maximum building height on lots larger than 20,000 square feet is too 
high. 

Commissioner Woodall said she would prefer a maximum building height of 20 feet. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that if the height were restricted to 
20 feet and the applicant went through the use permit process to construct a taller 
structure, the neighbors would have the opportunity to comment. 

Commissioner Angeloff asked what the general use is for structures that tall. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said in the County, buildings 26 feet tall are 
generally barns. 

After further discussion, the consensus of the Commission was to restrict the height for 
accessory structures on lots 20,000 square feet or larger to 20 feet. 

Next was discussion on the maximum gross floor area. 

Commissioner Woodall suggested the maximum gross floor area be limited to 1,000 
square feet and in the event someone wants to have a larger structure on lots 20,000 
square feet or greater that they be subject to a use permit. She also commented that 
metal buildings are not very conducive to residential neighborhoods. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said staff could come back to the 
Commission at the next meeting with a recommendation that all accessory structures be 
stick built to maintain the character of the neighborhood if that is the direction of the 
Commission. 

Commissioner Kemp stated that he would think that the materials of a building would 
be determined on a case by case basis. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that there is nothing in state law that 
says a jurisdiction can't ban metal buildings but instead of banning them perhaps they 
could be addressed through the conditional use permit process. 

5 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 
AUGUST 23,2016 MINUTES 

Page 6 

Commissioner Woodall brought up the possibility of requiring a fa~ade on the front 
portion of the building. 

Staff agreed to bring back at the next meeting some suggested language regarding 
metal buildings for the Commission to consider. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the other issue is the use of 
cargo/shipping containers used as accessory structures in residential zones which has 
recently become an issue in the City. He said he didn't prepare recommended 
provisions as he wasn't sure how the Planning Commission wants to address them. 

He reviewed some common general provisions that apply in other jurisdictions as well 
as some additional provisions imposed to ensure the residential character and 
compatibility of the neighborhood is maintained. He pointed out that the bulleted 
points in the staff report are merely talking points at this time and possible things for 
the Commission to consider. He said he also found that many jurisdictions require the 
installation of a 3 foot by 6 foot access door so if someone gets locked in a cargo 
container they can get out. 

He noted that staff is recommending that cargo containers be allowed in all zones on a 
temporary basis when utilized during construction or grading operations when they are 
used solely for the storage of construction supplies and equipment. 

Another recommendation is that existing cargo containers not be considered legal 
nonconforming uses and that they are required to be brought into compliance within 
180 days after the effective date of the ordinance. 

Commissioner Kemp warned staff to not be surprised if someone submits house plans 
using cargo containers as part or all of the residential structure. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the question is whether the 
Commission wants to totally restrict the use of cargo containers in residential zones; or 
allow the use of cargo containers as accessory structures subject to certain provisions 

6 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 

AUGUST 23, 2016 MINUTES 

Page 7 

included but not limited to how and where the container is placed on the parcel and 
requiring they be painted a solid neutral color or a color to match the residence. 

Commissioner Strahan commented that he uses these types of containers on his job 
every day and personally would not want them in his neighborhood because he sees 
how they look when they get worn. He said they are harder to maintain than a stick 
built structure and noisy to open and close as they clank. 

Commissioner Angeloff agreed with Commissioner Strahan but said it could open up a 
can of worms if some designer comes in and wants to utilize a cargo container and is 
willing to make it aesthetically pleasing. 

Commissioner Woodall agreed that cargo containers should not be allowed in 
residential zones and said it is hard enough for staff to keep up with other code 
enforcement/nuisance issues. 

Commissioner Marks asked how existing cargo containers would be handled. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said staff's recommendation is that existing 
cargo containers not be considered legal nonconforming uses and that they are required 
to be removed. Another option would be to find a way to make them more compatible. 
He stated that he would like to notify the Rio Dell Fire Department and other 
stakeholders in the City to come to a meeting and comment on the issue. 

Commissioner Angeloff stated that he can see banning cargo containers in all residential 
zones and perhaps allowing them in commercial zones and certainly in industrial zones. 

Commissioner Kemp noted that at least one person in the area is buying cargo 
containers and old delivery trucks and selling them for storage units. Then the City has 
the problem with all these different cargo containers advertising U-Haul or Joe's Fish 
Market etc. 

7 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 
AUGUST 23, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 8 

Commissioners agreed with temporary use of cargo containers on construction sites as 
proposed and the consensus was to have staff bring the item back for further 
consideration at the next regular Planning Commission meeting on September 27, 2016. 

Commissioner Angeloff called for public comment on the proposed resolution; no public 
comment was received. 

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to adopt Resolution No. PC-099-2016 as modified 
to eliminate the section on Cargo Containers for further review at the next meeting and 
limiting the height to a maximum of 20 feet for accessory structures on residential lots 
20,000 square feet or greater. Motion carried 5-0. 

Ordinance No. 348-2016 Establishing Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use 
Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 
Community Development Director Caldwell clarified that this item is a "receive and file" 
item only and that the proposed changes to the ordinance do not require a public 
hearing and comment, but the Council is required to report the proposed changes to the 
Commission. 

Commissioner Angeloff stated that he would like the opportunity to go over the 
ordinance with a fine tooth comb to make sure the comments to the Council are right. 

Community Development Director Caldwell reviewed the changes and explained 
because Ordinance No. 342-2016 that the Planning Commission recommended the 
Council approve did not pass, as a procedural matter, the current recommended 
regulations are being considered under a new ordinance (Ordinance No. 348-2016). He 
said the role of the Planning Commission is to review and comment only on the 
recommended changes; not the entire ordinance. 

Staff said the changes to the regulations are minor although they are more restrictive 
than what the Commission recommended. The primary changes included: 

• Limiting all cannabis related activities to the area known as the Sawmill 
Annexation area; 

• Eliminating dispensaries as an allowed use within the city, including the Sawmill 
Annexation area; 

8 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 

AUGUST 23,2016 MINUTES 

Page 9 

• Clarifying the difference between outdoor (open field) and greenhouse 
cultivations; 

• Clearly prohibiting outdoor-open field cultivation within the city; 

• Eliminating odor discharges to neighboring properties from cultivation and 
manufacturing facilities; 

• Requiring that employees involved in cultivation and processing activities have 
access to coveralls in addition to facemasks and gloves; 

• Requiring that cultivation, processing, manufacturing facilities, testing 
laboratories and dispensaries be alarmed with either an audible or silent alarm 
system that are operated, and monitored by a recognized security company; 

• Requiring that security cameras shall be installed and maintained in good 
condition, and used in an ongoing manner with at least 240 concurrent hours of 
digitally recorded documentation in a format approved by the Planning 
Commission for cultivation, processing, manufacturing facilities, testing 
laboratories and dispensaries. The cameras shall be in use 24 hours/day, 7/days 
per week. The areas to be covered by the security cameras shall include, but are 
not limited to, the public areas, processing areas, storage areas, employee areas, 
all doors and windows, and any other areas as determined to be necessary by 
the Planning Commission. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that another item of discussion was 
the possibility to require a construction deposit and/or performance bond for new 
cannabis related facilities. He said performance bonds are typically associated with 
public improvements and/or public projects so staff is checking with the City Attorney 
regarding the legality of construction deposits and performance bonds for these 
facilities. He commented that it has been said that it could be considered arbitrary and 
capricious to single out particular businesses. 

Commissioner Angeloff asked if the Council has an issue with greenhouses that open up 
from the top to let in natural sunlight and whether they would then be considered as 
outdoor cultivation. He said he would also like to have a clear description of the Sawmill 
Annexation area so the City Council is very clear. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that all commercial greenhouses have 
openable roofs/vents and are not considered as outdoor cultivation. He also clarified 
that the Council is very clear on exactly where the Sawmill Annexation is. 

9 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 

AUGUST 23, 2016 MINUTES 

Page 10 

Commissioner Marks referred to page 64 of the packet related to subsection (i) were it 
talks about felony convictions and asked if the California Penal Code should be cited. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that the language is taken 
directly out of the State regulations so felt it was adequate. 

Commissioner Angeloff referred to the same section of the ordinance and said under (i) 
where it states that "No owner or employee who mokes or will moke operational or 
management decisions that directly impact the business shall have been convicted of an 
offense, or is currently free on bail ........ " and wanted to state for the record that this 
language leaves it a bit too open for interpretation and that basically any offense could 
be considered as a valid reason. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that this language is also taken 
directly out of the State regulations and that he certainly could make that point but staff 
is not comfortable modifying the State language. 

Commissioner Marks asked what will happen if recreational cannabis is legalized in 
November. 

Community Development Director Caldwell indicated that most jurisdictions are 
adopting the same regulations for recreational cannabis as commercial cannabis but 
that staff will bring the ordinance back to the Planning for further review when and if 
that happens. 

Commissioner then asked if the State regulations change if the city would then have to 
adopt new regulations. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the City would need to make changes 
to keep up with new State regulations. 

Commissioner Angeloff called for public comment on the proposed changes to the 
Commercial Cannabis Land Use Regulations; no public comment was received. 

STAFF REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

10 



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 
AUGUST 23, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 11 

Community Development Director Caldwell reported potential items on the next regular 
agenda will include update of the Noise Element, update of the Safety Element, 
regulations for metal buildings, regulations for cargo containers, and a lot line 
adjustment for Dennis Wendt. 

ADOURNMENT 

Motion was made by Commissioner Marks/Woodall to adjourn the meeting at 7:46 p.m. 
to the September 27, 2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

Nick Angeloff, Chair 

Attest: 

Karen Dunham, Planning Commission Secretary 

11 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707l 764-3532 

aT'!' 01' 

For Meeting of: September 27, 2016 

To: 

from : 

Through : 

Date: 

Subject: 

Planning Commission 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

September 19, 2016 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment: An application for a lot line adjustment between 

four parcels of about 20, 10, .6 and .5 acres. The proposed lot line adjustment 

will reconfigure the parcels into 15+/-, 8.4+/-, 4.9+/- and 3.6+/- acres 

respectively. 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed lot line adjustment; 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, close the public hearing and deliberate; 

3. find that the proposed lot line adjustment is consistent with the Rio Dell General Plan, 
Zoning and Building regulations and is Categorically Exempt pursuant to Section 15305 
of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations 

• • 
4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 098-2016 approving the proposed lot line adjustment. 

Summary 

Wendt Construction recently submitted an application for a lot line adjustment between four 
parcels of about 20, 10, .6 and .5 acres. The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the 
parcels into 15+/-, 8.4+/-, 4.9+/- and 3.6+/- acres respectively. 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

12 



Based on a review of the Preliminary Title Report, current deeds and creation deeds, staff has 
determined that the four parcels are legal, separate parcels created in compliance with the 
Subdivision Map Act and local regulations. See below: 

Parcel Creation Information 
APN Creation Type Document - Date 

205-111-028 Deed Book 695, Page 510 OR - July 18, 1962 
205-111-029 Deed Original parcel Book 362, Page 229 OR-

October 18, 1955. Parcel was created by 
conveying a portion, Hampton to 
Johnson, Book 657, Page 598 OR-
October 24, 1961 

205-111-030 Deed Book 657, Page 598 OR - October 24, 
1961 

205-111-050 Lot Line Adjustment, County of Notice of Lot Line Adjustment and 
Humboldt. Case No. LLA 07-30 Certificate of Subdivision Compliance. 

Document No. 2011-17119-5, Recorded 
August 15, 2011. 

Based on the proposed project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Class 5, Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. This exemption applies to lot line adjustments with an average slope of 
less than 20% and does not result in any changes in land use or density. 

The applicant has submitted evidence in support of making the required findings. Lot line 
adjustments shall be approved if the required findings can be made. Therefore staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission approve the project as conditioned. 

Required Findings 

Section 16.35.030 Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). 

A lot line adjustment shall be approved or conditionally approved when there is compliance 
with all of the following approval criteria: 

• 

(1) The application is found to be complete; and 

(2) Either (a) the parcels to be adjusted are found to be in compliance with the Subdivision 
Map Act and local subdivision regulations, or (b) a Conditional Certificate of Subdivision 
Compliance for the parcel or parcels has been issued for recordation prior to or concurrent with 
the lot line adjustment; and 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

13 



(3) The proposed lot line adjustment neither causes non-conformance nor increases the 
severity of pre-existing nonconformities with the General Plan, Zoning and Building ordinances. 
Providing compliance with this subsection, the approval shall not be conditioned on correction 
or preexisting non-conformities with the General Plan, Zoning and Building ordinances. 

Staff Analysis 

1. Complete Application 

The applicant has submitted the required application materials including the map/plot plan 
illustrating the proposed lot line adjustment, copies of the current deeds, creation documents 
and copies of a Preliminary Title Report (PTR) for each of the parcels. 

2. Subdivision Map Act Compliance 

As previously indicated, the parcels were created in compliance with State and local 
regulations. The current and creation deeds/documents are included as Attachment 1. 

3. General Plan, Zoning and Building Ordinance Consistency 

The parcels are planned and zoned Industrial Commercial (IC) and a portion (the hillside) of 
Parcel F is designated Natural Resources. The purpose of the Industrial Commercial zone is to 
provide for industrial and commercial uses. The minimum parcel size is 20,000 square feet. 
The primary purpose of the Natural Resource zone is to provide natural resource protection. 
There is no minimum parcels size for the Natural Resource deSignation . 

• 

A copy of the Industrial Commercial and Natural Resource development standards are included 
as Attachment 2. 

The proposed lot line adjustment does not result in any nonconformity in regards to setbacks or 
lot coverage and does not require the relocation of any easements or utilities. 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

14 



Based on comments from referral agencies, information submitted by the applicant and the 
recommended conditions of approval, the evidence supports the finding that the proposed lot 
line adjustment is in conformance with all applicable policies of the Zoning Regulations, General 
Plan and Building Regulations. 

4. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Based on the proposed project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Class 5, Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. This exemption applies to lot lines adjustment with an average slope of 
less than 20% and does not result in any changes in land use or density. 

Attachments: 

Attachment 1: Project Referral and Maps 
Attachment 2: Current Deeds and Creation Deeds 
Attachment 3: Industrial Commercial and Natural Resource Development Standards 
Attachment 4: Conditions of Approval 
Attachment 5: Resolution No. PC 101-2016 

• 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

15 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

Community Development Department 

Project Referral 

Date: August 25, 2016 

To: 0 Public Works 
o Rio Dell Fire District 

o Rio Dell Police Department 
o County Environmental Health 
D County Planning Department 

o Regional Water Quality Control Board 

Applicant: Wendt Construction 

o Fortuna Fire District 
o Rio Dell City Manager 
o Department of Toxics and Substance Control 
o Caltrans District #1 
D Fish and Wildlife 

o Applicant/Agent 

Agent: 

Address: 1660 Newburg Road Address: ____________ _ 

City/State/Zip: Fortuna. CA. 95540 City/State/Zip: __________ _ 

Telephone: (707) 725-5641 Telephone: 

Email: wc@wendtco.com Email: 

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 205-111-028. -029. -030 & General Pian/Zoning: Industrial Commercial 
205-111-050 & 205-171 017 

Project Description: A lot line adjustment between four parcels of about 20, 10, .6 and .5 acres. The lot line 
adjustment will reconfigure the parcels into 15+/-, 8.4+/-. 4.9+/- and 3.6+/· acres respectively. 
Project location: The project site is located at the former Eel River Sawmill site, known as 1053 Northwestern 
Ave. 

Please review the attached information regarding the above referenced project and provide your comments with 
any recommended conditions of approval within 15 calendar days of the above date. If no response is received or a 
request for an extension is not received within 15 calendar days of the above date, it will be assumed that your 
agency has no comments or concerns regarding the project. The project is scheduled to be heard at the Planning 
Commission meeting of September 27. 2016. 

If you have any questions concerning the project. please contact Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director 
between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday at (707) 764-3532. 

We have reviewed the above referenced application and recommend the following (please check one) : 

D Recommend approval. The Department has no comment at this time. 

D Recommend conditional approval. Suggested conditions attached. 

o Other comments: 

Print Name: __________________ _ 

PrOject Referral Form 

Date: __________ _ 

page 1 

ATTACHMENT 1 16 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment 

File No. 205-11-028 et al; Case No. LLA16-02 

Date: August 25, 2016 

20511129 

Applicant: Wendt Construction Agent: 

Address: 1660 Newburg Road Address: 

City/State/Zip: Fortuna, CA. 95540 City/State/Zip: 

Telephone: (707)725·641 Telephone: 

Email: wc(alwendtco.com Email: 

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 205-111·028, ·029, ·030 & General Plan/Zoning: 
205·111-050 & 205-171 017 

~ I 20518102 , 

Industrial Commercial 

Project Description: A lot line adjustment between four parcels of about 20, 10, .6 and .5 acres. The lot 
line adjustment will reconfigure the parcels into 15+/-, 8.4+/-, 4.9+/- and 3.6+/- acres respectively. 
Project Location: The project site is located at the former Eel River Sawmill site, known as 1053 
Northwestern Ave. 

Wendt/Eel River Recover LLA August 2016 

17 



- .. ~.-

® 

o 

JP Bk. 205, Pg. 11 
of Humboldt, CA. 

@ 

® 

_---- u.s. 

j;::~" EEL 

PTN SEC 36, T2N R1W, H.B.o.. M. 
NOTE - Assessor's Block Numbers Shown In Elllp!les 

Assessor's Porcel Numbel"5 Sh own In Sm all C.rcles 

RS, Bk 52 of Surveys, Pg 19 
RS. Bk 68 of Surveys, Pg 131 - 135 
RS. Bk 69 of Surveys. Pg 50 ~ 

'~" 

Lv5-11 

ASSESSOR'S PMCEL YAP 
__ .•. _ r_ 

I TttS ~AP WAS rn~ ... ".' ~" ._. 

ASS£SSIKHT P\.IIPOStS Otfly 
/10 UA8tJtY IS AS\llW[O ~ 
THE .ItOJII,I.CT ~ THE a.IA 5OO'iI\'I . 
ASSESSOR'S P.oRC[LS lolA' NOI 
COl.IPLY WI~ I..OCAL lOf- V'Ut 
CA 8uIUlifoC S,l t ~rs 

moee 10, 2QI<4 
~ ., 1. 

-> '':-... " , ,. 
,----, 

= 
100' 100' 400' 

§tG I @ :1 ; 1 m
." ®:~ 

@; J~ 

,i!,. 

~1" J]'. IO~ j' , 

~ Ra<D 

_ JlEA,vPER -

RIVER 

®;J/ 
f'. 

, 
" 

..a.-OI'52": Ulll' 

): . ...: . ..;. .. 

® 
n t. 
'"'

Ci",..t ...... 
, .. . ' 

_ u,vC- - 'I 

t ./ 
@ 
M ... 
""- Ii 

CD® 

l[!j' 

@ ~ r , 

EX) ® 

00 ,.... 



ASSESSOR'S PARCO. WJ> 

, TICS lUI' WAS .... ..- ..... ~ ."" 
.t.SSlSSloltHT ~$(S OH!.' 
I'IO~"IS~'CJII 
" IIU1AICt 01' 'II: ~. ~ 
~\,!iUii's.~_,,,,::,~ 
t~, .... , .. LO(.Ir(. LOt-SJ'U1 
011 IlUt.DoNG 5Il'l 0JI(II0lHC(~ 

..... 
\D 

PTN SEC 36 

@@ 
o .... 

RS. Bk 52 of surveys, Pg 19 
RS. 8k 63 01 surveys, Pg 38 

T2N R1W H.B.& M. 

.@. @ 

NOT~ - Ass'!ssor's alock NUl'Tlbc~s Snown in £Ihps'!s 
Assessor's Parcel l~ufr1tlers Shown ir, Circl!c's 

Assessor's MOD Bk.205, PQ.l7 
County of Humboldt, CA. 

205-17 

,.", 400' 

® 
~ 

@i@ 

.--, 
Ci 
100' 200' .00' 

fT.\ 
\'t.) Jun 6. 2012 



• 

" -

RECORDING REQUESTED By AND WHEN 
RECORDED MAIL To: 

Humboldt Land Recovery Inc. 
clo Wendt Construction Co .• Inc. 
1660 Newburg Road 
Fortuna, CA 95540 
Attention: Sue Long 

MAIL TAX STATEMENT To: 

Humboldt Land Recovery Inc. 
c/o Wendt Construction Co .• Inc. 
1660 Newburg Road -
Fortuna. CA 95540 
Attention: Sue Long 

(Space above this line for Recorder's use) 

GRANT DEED 

2008-457-5 
Recorded - Official Records 

Humboldt County, California 
Carolyn Crnich, Recorder 

Recorded by HUMBOLDT LAND TrrLE CO_ 
Ree Fee 19.00 
No PeOR 20.00 
Survey Mon 10 . 00 
Clerk: MM Total: 49.00 

Jan 8, 2008 at 15 :20 

In accordance with Section 11932 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Grantor 
has declared the amount of the transfer tax which is due by a separate statement that is not being 
recorded with this Grant Deed. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, EEL RIVER ACQUISITION CORPORATION, a Nevada 
corporation, by its attorney-in-fact U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking 
association ("Granlor"), grants to HUMBOLDT LAND RECOVERY INC .• a Califomia 
corporation ("Graatee"). all that certain real property situated in the ej-s f r tu • County of 
Humboldt. State of California. described on SchedJI/e 1 attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein (the "Property"). 

SUBJECT To the following: 

(a) All liens, encumbrances, easements. covenants. conditions, restrictions and other 
matters of record; 

(b) All matters which a correct survey of the Property would disclose; 

(c) All matters which could be ascertained by a physical inspection of the Property; 

(d) Interests of parties in possession; 

(e) Any and all liens not yet delinquent for real property and personal property taxes and 
for general and special assessments against the Property; and 

1 
.f-2444007 

ATTACHMENT 2 20 



'.' . 

(f) Building and zoning ordinances and regulations and any other laws, ordinances, or 
governmental regulations restricting, regulating or relating to the use, occupancy or enjoyment of 
the Property. 

2 
5f·2444oo7 

2008·457·5 

21 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor bas executed this Grant Deed as of lrHl/J1Y ll1J 
1~mr.1 December 2e. 2007, 

HIIIIIboIdt Olmt ~ 
SI8J1I1\1n PIp 
.r·2444007 

GRANTOR: EEL RlVER ACQUISmON CORPORA nON, 
BY ITS AlTORNEY-IN-FACT 
U.S. BANK NA nONAL ASSOCIA nON 

By: --.::~5~:~P====~ __ 
Tl
Nlamtlee •. : --lTf.fIiFFlFRE39IflthFJI)f-' t'Ptflilllfl&tf'f----

P' P 'd vice res, e, i I 

S-I 

2008-457-5 

22 



MINNESOTA STATE OF ____ _ 

COUNTY OF _~I't<IhA'u\S5tF){~-

On 1'lt!?8{?rnfl ,beforcme, L. ElaIne Eby 
I --~--------~~M-m~~~.~~~~.q~~-~~~~~---------

, personally appeared ( who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the pe OD(S) whose name(s) isfarc subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/sbe/they executed the same in hislher/their 
authorized capacity(ics), and that by hislher/their signatuRes) OD the instrument the person(s), or 
the entity upon bebalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. I certify under 
PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

(Seal) 

.f-2444007 

L ELAINEEBY 
Nolafy Public 

Mlnnasola . __ L 
3L.,.,r 

L. Elal e Eby 

2008-457-5 ® 
23 



, " , ' : . 

SCHEDULE I 
TO 

GRANT DEED 

Legal Description 

That real property situate in the County of Humboldt, State ofCalifomia, described as follows: 

PARCELH: 

BEGINNING at a point 11.71 chains West of the Northeast comer of the South Halfofthe Northeast Quarter of 
Section 36, Township 2 NOI1h, Range I West, Humboldt Meridian, and running 

thence Wes~ 17.63 chains; 
thence South 28 chalos, more or less, to the North bank of the Eel River; 
thence Easterly, up said North Bank, 17.63 chains, more or less, to a point in range with the West line ofland 

deeded to Jolm M. Connick by Price on September 26, 1893 and recorded in Book 48 of Deeds, page 40, Humboldt 
County Records; and 

thence North following .Iong the West line of said COMick land, 26 chains, more or less, to the point of 
begiMing. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion thereof which lies South orthe North line of the parcel ofland deeded to the 
Pacific Lumber Company by B.A. Price by deed dated December II, 1883 and recorded in Book 12 of Deeds, page 
452, Humboldt County Records. 
(apa 205-111-015) 

Schedule I-I 
sf-2444007 

2008-457-5 ~) 
24 



, 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

Humboldt Land ntle Company 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO 
AND MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

-- Wendt Construction Co., Inc. 
....... 1660 Newburg Road 

Fortuna, CA 95540 

2012-030675-5 
Recorded - Official Records 
Humboldt County, California 
Carolyn Crnich, Recorder 
Recorded by: HL TCO 
Rec Fee: $25.00 

Clerk: KL Tota1:S25.00 
Dec 19, 2012 aI14:13:23 

SPACE ABOVE 1l!IS I.INE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

CORRECTORY GRANT DEED 

This Grant Deed is being recorded ID c:oned the name of the Grantee In Grant Deed recorded Allri18, 2008, as Instrument No. 2008-8706-5, In 

the _ of the Humboldt County Rea>rder. 

THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR(s) DEClARE(s) Iloaonentary TransferTIXIs $OO,!""'OO,,,:-;=-,. __ ~ __ --: __ 
City of unincorporated .... it computed on full value of Interest Dr property conveyed. or 
Partel No. 205-111-012,016.026, 29,30 C fullvaluoless value of lie .. or encumbrances remaining at 

205-171-008. 012.205-181-001 th.lime of sale 

FOR A VAlUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

Wendt Construction Co., Inc., a California corporation, who acquired title as 

Wendt Construction Inc., a California corporation, 

hereby GRANT(s) to 

Wendt Construction Co., Inc., a California corporation, 

the following real property in the unincorporated area, County of Humboldt, State of California: 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Dated: ApFil4 2012 /2 - 11-/2. 

Stale of California 
County of H(ltnboJlql-
On 1}' lj-IZ befOleme, St.(}tlIl/(/(c!! 
a Notary Public, personally appeared __________ _ 

'TJi'iWls LlJand-l 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfaelory evidence to be the 
person(slWhose name(s) Ialare subscribed 10 the within instrument and 
acknowiedged to me thai he/shelthey executed the same in hisllterltheir 
authorized capacity[oes) and that by hislharllheir s1gnature(s)on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 
aeled, executed the Instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the Stale of 
California that the foregoing paragraph is true and corred. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature ____ q-J._L-'---_______ _ 
My commission expires: _...:5-:..-:...N:.......:-/....:,'-_____ _ 

Dennis Wendt, President 

Commission II 1861439 
Notary PubliC· Californ ia 

Humboldt County 
2013 

(This area for _I notarial seaQ 

25 



, 

Exhibit A 

DESCRIPTION 

That real property situate in the County of Humboldt, state of Califomia, described as follows: 

PARCELG: 

BEGINNING at a point on the East line of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 West, Humboldt Meridian, 4 links North 
from an iron pipe, 1 112 inches in diameter, driven in the ground for the quarter section comer on the East line of said 
Section 36; 

thence North along the Section line, 12.02 chains; 
thence West, 9.25 chains to a stake from which bears a redwood 18 inches in diameter marked B.T.FAM; 
thence South 9.56 chains to the North tine of the Northwestem Pacific Railroad right of way; and 
thence Easterly along said right of way 9.55 chains to the point of beginning. 

PARCell: 

COMMENCING at the Northeast comer of lands formerly owned by Elise C. Christensen on the SOuth side of the state 
highway in the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 West, Humboldt 
Meridian; and running North 2 chains to the true point of beginning of the land herein Intended to be described, said point 
of beginning being the intersection of said North line of the railroad land with the West line of the land fonnerly of L.P. 
Bundeson; 

thence from said true point of beginning North along the West line of the land of Bundeson 7 chains to the 
subdivision line at a point which is distant 29.34 chains West of the East line of said Section 36; 

thence West along the subdivision line 11 .70 chains to the North line of lands of the Northwestern Pacific 
Railroad; 

thence South 59114 degrees East along said last-mentioned line 13.61 chains to the point of beginning. 

PARCELJ: 

BEGINNING on the West line of the tract of land heretofore Deeded to Marjorie Connick by Deed dated February 6, 1934 
recorded in Book 213 of Deeds, Page 325, Humboldt County Records, at a point where the same is Intersected by the 
North tine of the strip of land Deeded to the Pacilic Lumber Company by Deed dated December 11, 1883 recorded in 
Book 12 of Deeds, Page 453, (now owned by the Northwestem Pacific Railroad Company); and running 

thence North along the West line of said tract of land deeded to Connick, 262 feet; 
thence East, 150 feet to a point which is distant 13 feet West of the West line of the tract of land Deeded to 

Rocco Cappi and wife, by Deed dated January 15, 1941; 
thence South parallel with the said West line 322 feet to the North tine of land of said Northwestern Pacific 

Railroad Company; and 
thence Westerly along said last mentioned line 162 feet to the point of beginning. 

Being a portion of the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 Wes~ 
Humboldt Meridian. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM a strip of land of the unifonn width of 125 feet off the entire North side thereof. 

Continued ... 

OR #2012-030675-5 2 of 5 
26 



• 

DESCRIPTION CON11NUED .. . 

PARCELK: 

Page 2 

BEGINNING on the section line at a point, which is distant thereon 795.96 feet North of the quarter section comer on the 
East line of Section 36 in Township 2 North, Range 1 West, Humboldt Meridian; 

and running thence North along the section ~ne 524.04 feet to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter of said Section 36; 

thence West along the subdiVision line, 772.86 feet to the Northwest comer of the 27.47 acre tract of land 
Deeded to MSIjorIe Connick by Deed of record In Book 213 of Deeds, Page 325, Humboldt County Records; 

thence South along the West line of said 27.47 acre tract 822 feet to a point which is distant thereon 262 feet 
North of the North line of the strip of land Deeded to the Pacific Lumber Company by Deed dated December ii, 1883, 
recorded in Book 12 of Deeds, Page 453 (now owned by the Northwestem Pacific Railroad Company); 

thence East 150 feet to a point which is distant 13 feet West of the West line of the 10.10 acre tract of land 
Deeded to Rocco Cappi and wife by Deed dated January 15, 1941; 

thence South paraHel to the West ~ne of said 10.10 acre tract, 322 feet to the North line of said land of 
Northwestern Pacific Railroad Company; 

thence Easterfy along the North line of said railroad lands, 15 feet more or less to the Southwest comer of said 
10.10 acre tract Deeded to Cappi; 

thenoe North 630.96 feet to the Northwest comer thereot, 
and thence East 610.50 feet to the point of beginning. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion of said land conveyed by Deed from Edward C. Hampton and Evelyn J. 
Hampton, his wife, to Eugene E. Johnson and Miona D. Johnson, his wife as joint tenants recorded October 24, 1961, in 
Book 657 of Official Records, Page 598, Humboldt County Records, described as follows: 

BEGINNING on the section line at a point which is distant thereon 795.96 feet North from the quarter section comer on 
the East line of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 West, Humboldt Meridian; and running thence West 535.50 fee~ 
thence North 50 feel to the true point of beginning of the parcel of land to be here described; 

tIlenoe from said true point of beginning run East, 150 feet, 
thence North 150 feet; 
thence West 150 feet; 
and thence South 150 feet to said true point of beginning. 

Continued ... 

OR #2012-030675-5 3 of 5 
27 



DESCRIPTION CONTINUED ... Page 3 

PARCELL: 

That portion of the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North Range, Range 1 West, 
Humboldt Meridian, described as foUows: 

Sub Parcel One: 

BEGINNING on the section line at a point which is distant thereon 795.96 feet North from the quarter section comer on 
the East line of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 West, Humboldt Meridian; 

and running thence West, 535.50 feet; 
thence North 50 feet to the true point of beginning of the parcel of land to be here described; 
thence from said true point of beginning run East 150 fee~ 
thence North 150 fee~ 
thence West 150 feet; 
and thence South 150 feet to said true point of beginning. 

PARCELM: 

Sub Parcel One: 

That parcel in the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 West, Humboldt 
Meridian, described as follows: 

BEGtNNING at a point on the West fine of said Northwest Quarter of Northeast Quarter located 150 feet North of the 
Southwest comer thereof; 

running thence East 320 fee~ 
thence South 150 feet to a point located 320 feet East of said Southwest comer, 
thence West 274.04 feet more or less to the North line of land of Northwestem Pacific Railroad; 
thence along the North line of said raiiroad land, North 59 degrees 21 minutes West 52.78 feet to the aforesaid 

West line of said Northwest Quarter of Northeast Quarter; 
and thence North along said last-mentioned line, 122.88 feet to the place of beginning. 

Sub Parce! Two: 

That parcel in the North Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 WesL Humboldt 
Meridian, desalbed as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point located 150 feet North and 320 feet East of the Southwest comer of said North Half of Northeast 
Quarter, 

running thence South 150 feet more or less to the subdivisional tine; 
thence East along last-mentioned line, 183 fee~ 
and thence Northwesterly in a straight line to the point of beginning. 

Continued ... 

OR #2012-030675-5 4 of 5 
28 



• 

DESCRIPTION CONTINUED ... Page 4 

PARCELN: 

That portion of the North Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North, Range 1 Wes~ Humboldt 
Meridian, desaibed as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point on the West line of said subdivision, located 150 feet North of the Southwest corner thereot, 
thence North 89 degrees 36 mInutes 54 seconds Eas~ 320 feet to the true point of beginning; 
thence from said true point of beginning South 80 degrees 52 minutes 11 seconds East, 907.35 feet to the South 

line of said subdivision; 
thence South 89 degrees 36 minutes 54 seconds W~ along said South line a distance of710.29 feet to the 

most Eastelly comer of the land conveyed 10 Mary Mirenda, by Deed recorded September 7, 1955, in Book 355 of 
Official Records, Page 553; 

thence along the Northeasterly line of said land, North 51 degrees 17 minutes 22 seconds Wes~ 237.85 feet to 
the true point of beginning. 

PARCEL 0: 

BEGINNING at the quarter section comer on the Westline of Section 31, Township 2 North, Range 1 Eas~ Humboldt 
Meridian, and running 

thence North 676.5 feet 
thence Easterly 264 feet; 
thence South 676.5 feet; and 
thence Westerly 264 feel to the point of beginning. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion thereof conveyed by Alden H. Bradford and wife to the Pacific Lumber 
Company, a corporation by Deed recorded October 10,1885 in Book 17 of Deeds, Page 431 . 

OR #2012·030675·5 5 of 5 

29 



2011-17118-2 
Recorded - Official Records 

Humboldt County, California 
Carolyn Cmich, Recorder 

Recorded by HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE CO. RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

Wendt Conslruction Rec Fee 16.00 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO No PCOR 20 . 00 

Clerk: LH Total: 36. 00 
Wendt Construction 
1660 Newburg Road 
Fortuna, CA 95540 

Aug 15, 2011 al 10:00 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECOROER'S USE ---

APN: 205·111.015 GRANT DEED 

The undersigned grantor(s) declare(s): 
Documentary transfer tax is $ none pursuant. to R!.T Code 11925 (d) 

( ) computed on full value of property conveyed, or 

( ) computed on full value less value of liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale. 

( ) Unincorporated Area () City of Rio Dell 

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

Wendt Construction Co., Inc. a California CorporaUon 
hereby GRANTS to: 

Humboldt Land Recovery, Inc., a California CorporaUon 

the following described real property in the City of Rio Dell, County of Humboldt, State of Califomia: 

See EXHIBIT 'A' attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Daled: _3_"_0_'_" __ 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ISS 
COUIITY OF HUMBOLDT ) 

On 3,10-11 b.,.". me. -=:5.:.:. w=Cl",{::..:1 t:(:l:(£""-__ _ 

• Nolory Public. pellonally app •• red, _______ _ 

7JrMnir Llklndb 

proven to me on the balll o( ut1efadory evidence. to be the 
peraon(s) whole nllme,s) tallrs lubacttbed to the wtthln Instrument 
and acknCJWlediled 10 meNI he/OheIIIIey .... uted the aame In 
hl""'r"".lr authortzed Clpeclty(I •• ), end thai by hll/herllhelr 
1Igna1ln(.1 on the Inolrument the ,,",,0n(I), Of the enlily upon behaK 
of which the perlG"(s, acted. executed the Instrument. 

I certify under PENAL "IV OF PERJURY under "'e I .... of "'. Stal. 
of CllIfomIa. "'"ithe faregolng paragraph II true and _ . 

WITNESS my hand and otlldll ••• 1. 

Slgn.lure_---,~~;-.o::.~-./----------~ 

;zzonstrucuon Co., Inc. 

~ /44 .. "v-= 
Dennis Wendt, President 

@ 
S . WALL~CE 

-",'. Commission 111861439 
• • -.' Notuy Public · Cahlernll i 
~ ~l;-:: , Humboldt CounlY ~ 

J ...... !l :OT"!' r~re :Uj to}~1~1 

() 
30 



· . . 

EXHIBIT 'A' 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

All that real property located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North Range 1 
West, Humboldt Meridian, City of Rio Dell. County of Humboldt, State of California, described 
as follows: 

PARCEL ONE 

BEGINNING at the True Point of Beginning of Parcel 'I' as described in the deed from Robert A. 
Zigler to Wendt Construction Inc., recorded on April 8, 2008 as Instrument No. 2008·8706-5, 
Humboldt County Records, being the intersection of the North line of a 4 rod strip of land 
conveyed for railroad purposes per Book 12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records 
with the West line of the land formerly owned by L. P. Bundeson and described in the deed to 
Humboldt Land Recovery, Inc. recorded on January 8, 2008 as Instrument No. 2008-457-5, 
Parcel'H'; 

thence North along the West line of the land of Bundeson and Humboldt Land Recovery 
Inc., 75.42 feet to the line noted between parcels labled 'C' and '0' with the bearing of South 
37° 52' 00" West as shown on a Record of Survey for Wendt Construction Co., Inc. to be 
recorded; 

thence South 37" 52' 00" West, 65.45 feet to the North line of said 4 rod strip of land 
conveyed for railroad purposes; 

thence South 59' 24' 20" East along the North line of said railroad land, 46.67 feet to the 
Point of Beginning. 

~ Date: 

License Expires: 10-31-2012 

201 1-l7l IS-2 

31 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

Wendt Construction 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO 

Wendt Construction 
1660 Newburg Road 
Fortuna, CA 95540 

2011-17117-2 
Recorded - Official Records 

Humboldt County, California 
Carolyn Crnich, Recorder 

_dod by HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE co. 
RecFee 16.00 
No PCOR 20.00 
Clerk: LH Total: 36.00 

Aug 15, 2011 at 10:00 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE ---

APN: 205-1I1.()15 GRANT DEED 

The undersigned grantor(s) declare(s): 
Documentatytransfertaxis$ none pursuant; to R&T Code 11925(d) 

( ) computed on full value of property conveyed, or 

( ) computed on full value less value of liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale. 

( ) Unincorporated Aree () City of Rio Dell 

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which I. heraby acknowledged, 
Humboldt Land Recovery, Inc., a California Corporation 

heraby GRANTS to: 

Wendt Construction Co., Inc. a California Corporation 

the following desc1ibed real property in the City of Rio Dell, County of Humboldt, Slate of California: 

See EXHIBIT 'A' attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Dated: 3'10-11 

STATE OF CALifORNIA ISS 
COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT ) 

On 3-10-11 before me. S.Wal/q(€ 
• NotI<y 1'IIbIIc. _"lly _________ _ 

))ennis wendt 

PfDVln 10 mo on !he bull oIlO1Illadoly _.10 be !he 
p8l"1On(s) whOM nlmlt(l) III .... lublcribed to the wtthln Instrument 
and acknowledged to me that helahelthey executed the .. me In 
h __ ._ c:apac:IIy(lea) •• nd Ihol by __ 

algnllurall) on !he 1na1rumenltlle peIOon(l). Of tile onllly upon behlW 
0' which !he pa .. On(I) .ded. exoc:utlld 111. InatrumenL 

I cattify uncI<Ir PENALTY OF PERJURY _Ihe _ 011110 Slate 
01 ca_. IholI1e fooegDlng paragraph Is true and conect. 

WITNESS my hind and oftIdoJ ... 1. 

SIg"bJre ___ ~6"'''-________ _ 

Idt Land Recovery, Inc. 

Dennis Wendt, President 

lJ ' 
32 



• , '. 
. . . 

EXHIBIT 'A' 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

All that real property located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North Range 1 
West, Humboldt Meridian, City of Rio Dell, County of Humboldt, State of California, described 
as follows: 

PARCEL ONE 

BEGINNING at the Northwest comer of the land described in the deed to Humboldt Land 
Recovery, Inc. recorded on January 8,2008 as Instrument No. 2008-457-5, Parcel 'H', 
Humboldt County Records, being located on the North line of the South Half of the Northeast 
Quarter, 29.34 chains (1936.44 feet) West of the East line of said Section 36; 

thence South along the West line of Humboldt Land Recovery, Inc, 349.21 feet to a point 
on the line between parcels labled 'C' and '0' with the bearing of South 37° 52' 00" West as 
shown on a Record of Survey for Wendt Construction Co., Inc. to be recorded; 

thence along said line North 37° 52' 00" East, 54.98 feet; 
thence North 4 ° 52' 00" East, about 306.68 feet to the North line of the South Half of the 

Northeast Quarter of said Section 36; 
thence North 89° 46' 14" West along said line, 59.76 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

~L~ate: 
Wallace E. Wright, LS 4851 
License Expires: 10-31-2012 

3-04-'2/JI/ s¢'--:.~ 
\.,,~lD ;;~. 

Q ......... ul.Iif"t.· 
.~ .... to E. J:~' t · .. ;;,?- b..V ry~:. ro" 

" ....... r "I/: • _ 
ri ' 41 .' .:: , •• ~ 0 

\

u.< :t. '";a 
:::i:~ -4: 

• • • 
• ', No. 4851 : .... .. .. "( . 

~). ". ,";;.~ 
~". ". ..' 0.. • ." Il" •••••••• ~O;.( 

!'. 0" C~\.\ .''''' 

2011-17117-2 

33 



2011-17119-5 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

Recorded - Official Records 
Humboldt County, California 

Humboldt County 
Community Development Services 
Return to: 

Carolyn Crnieh, Recorder 
R=nle<I by HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE co. 
Ree Fee 25.00 

Humboldt County Clerk: LH Total: 25.00 

Community Development Services 
3015 H Street 
Eureka, CA 95501-4484 

NOTICE OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT AND 
CERTIFICATE OF SUBDMSION COMPLIANCE 

Aug IS, 2011 at 10:00 

ASSESSOR'S REFERENCE NUMBER(S): 
205-111-015,016-205-171-008,012 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) OF RECORD 
Wendt Costruction, IDe., Humboldt Land Recovery, 

Inc. 

Number of Resulting Parcels Certified: 4 
Identified hetein as Parcels A, B, C, 0 

NonCE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the rW properties described in the attached EXHIBIT" A" arc the mult of a Lot Line 
Adjustment in accordance with Section 66412 (d) oflbe Government Code of tile State ofC.lifomia, and that any portions of 
prior parcels contained within said resultant parcel descriptions have been merged into the single parcels described herein as 
Parcel A, Parcel B, Parcel C and Parcel D. 

nns NOTICE IS GIVEN by the pem>n(s) whose oame(s) is/arc subscribed on page 2 of this instrument as Ibe owners(s) of 
record of the real properties descnDed in the attached EXHIBIT "A". 

THIS CER TIFICA TE relates only to issues of compliance or noncompliance with the Subdivision Map Act and local ordinances 
enacted punuant thereto and no further compliance with the Subdivision Map Act is necessary. However, development ofth. 
parcel may require issuance ofa permit or permits, or other grant or grants ofapproval. 

nns CERTlFICA TE DOES NOT CERTIFY that tile real propeny for which this notice bas been given i. suitable for 
development in accordance with existing or future regulations. 

00 ibis l'f(, day of tI<.g~ ,2011,1 HEREBY CERTIFY that the Lot Lin. Adjustment for 
which this Notice is given bas been execut with the approval of the County of Humboldt and that the parcels or units of land 
multing from the Lot Line Adjustment complies with the provisions of the California Subdivision Map Act and County of 
Humboldt Ordinances enacted punuant thereto: 

BY jd ff,-? 
Kirk Girard, Director of Community Development Services, County of Humboldt 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } 
COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT } 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

On "It)'\ Q lA! QOI\ , before me, ~!o Q X) C,~ , Notary 
Public. personally appeared Killt Girard, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 
whose name Is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowtedged to me that he executed the same In his 
authorized capacity, and thai by his signature on the instrument the person, or entity upon behalf of which the person 
acted, executed the Instrument 

I certify under PENAllY OF PERJURY under the laws 01 the Slate of Callfomia that the foregoing parllilrap/lis true and COITecI. 

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL. 

~ b 0 Q V\. ~ • \9 '9~LA JaJI . at,,:;! D15 
SiGNURE OF NOTARY REGISTRATION NO. EXPIRES 

Comml •• Io •• 1111211 
NoIIIJ ""* . CIlIIOmI. 

Humltoldl 

34 



Page 2 
Notice of Lot Line Adjustment 

H.C.P.D. File No. LLA-07-30 
APN: 205-111-015etal 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATION 

.. ~: 

I hereby represent that we are the owners of record of the real properties described in the attached EXHIBIT "A", and 
that we have consented to executed the Lot Line Adjustment for which we have given the nollce herein. 

s~nawre ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ __________________ __ 
S~n Above Wendt Construction Inc., By: Dennis Wendt, President 

h ~/'Yis A. .B and C, Hereon 

signawre =~==---'~&:'f.'""'l5'.:f!-'7'~"":=:~:-:~=~'="'''''.:.=''-;:=::''':'"~=~==:O--------------Sign Above Humboldt Land RecoYely Inc., By: Dennis Wendt, President 
As to Parcel 0, Hereon 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } 
COUNTY OF HI/mho/d.! } 

On 3-/0-1/ , before me, __ S_. _w_a_lt._t:l __ l( ______________ ' a Notary Public, 

pe~~a~wed~~~~~~n~I~J~~~n~~~f ____________________ __ 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) lsIare subscribed to the 
Within instrument and acknowledged to me thai helshelthey executed the same In hi&lherlthelr authorized capacity 
(ies), and thai by hislher/their signature(.) on the instrument the person(s), or enily upon behalf of which the person(s) 
aetad, executed the instrument. 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the Slate of California that the foregoing paragraph Is true 
and correct. 

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL. 

Si~ 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER 

DOCUMENT 
(] INDIVIDUAL(S) 
U CORPORATE OFFICER(S) 

TITLE(S) 
[) PARTNER(S) U LIMITED [) GENERAL 
[) ATTORNEY-IN-FACf 

[) TRUSTEE(S) 
(] GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
[) OTHER: _____________ _ 

SEAL 

OPTIONAL DATA 

DESC~ONSOFATTACHED 

TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 

NUMBER OF PAGES _______ _ 

DATE OF DOCUMENT 

SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 

35 



EXHIBIT 'A' 
PROPERlY DESCRIPTION 

All that real property located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 2 North Range 1 
West, Humboldt Meridian, County of Humboldt, State of California, described as follows: 

PARCEL 'A' 

BEGINNING at a point on the West line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 at a point located North 1" 18' 24" West, 150 feet from the Southwest corner thereof; 

thence South 89" 46' 14" East (described as "East" in Instrument No. 2008-8706-5, Parcel 'M', 
Sub Parcel One), 320 feet; 

thence South 1" 18' 24" East, 316.61 feet to the Northerly line of the 4 rod wide strip of land 
conveyed for railroad purposes, Book 12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 

thence along said line, North 59" 24' 20" West, 376.80 feet to the West line of the Northwest 
Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 36, 

thence North 1" 18' 24" West, 126.07 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

SUBJECT TO a non-exclusive easement 24 feet wide for ingress, egress, drainage and public andlor 
private utilities and all other purposes incidental thereto, the Southwesterly line of said easement is 
described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where the west line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 intersects the North line of the 4 rod strip of land conveyed for railroad purposes per Book 
12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 

thence South 59" 24' 20" East along said railroad land, 155 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING of the Easement herein described; 

thence continuing South 59" 24' 20" East, 221.79 feet to the easterly line of PARCEL 'A'. 

This description includes the land or portions of the land described In the following deeds: Book 257 
of Deeds, page 234, recorded on October 19, 1942; Book 29, page 316, recorded on January 23, 
1948 Humboldt County Official Records. 

PARCEL 'B' 

BEGINNING at a point on the West line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 at a point located North 1" 18' 24" West, 150 feet from the Southwest comer thereof; 

thence South 89· 46' 14" East (described as "East" in Instrument No. 2008-8706-5, Parcel 'M', 
Sub Parcel One), 320 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING of the land herein described; 

thence South 1" 18' 24" East, 316.61 feet to the Northerly line ofthe 4 rod wide strip of land 
conveyed for railroad purposes, Book 12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 

thence along said line, South 59° 24' 20· East, 215.48 feet; 
thence leaving said line, North 1" 18' 24" West, 394.76 feet to the North line of the land 

conveyed by Silvio and Louise Mozzetti to Eel River Sawmills, Inc. by deed recorded on August 11, 
1980, in Book 1618, page 11,92, Humboldt County Official Records; 

thence along said line, North 80· 15' 30· West, (North 80· 52' 11" West, according to said 
deed to Eel River Sawmills, Inc.) 186.39 feet to the True Point of Beginning. 

INCLUDING a non-exclusive easement 24 feet wide for ingress, egress, drainage and public andlor 
private utilities and all other purposes incidental thereto, the Southwesterly line of said easement is 

page 1 

201 1-l7J 19-5 



.' 

EXHIBIT 'A' (continued) 
PARCEL 'B' (continued) 

described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where the west line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 intersects the North line of the 4 rod strip of land conveyed for railroad purposes per Book 
12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 

thence South 59° 24' 20" East along said railroad land, 155 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING of the Easement herein described; 

thence continuing South 59° 24' 20' East, 221.79 feet to the westerly line of PARCEL 'B'. 

SUBJECT to a non-exclusive easement 24 feet wide easement for ingress, egress, drainage and 
public and/or private utilities and all other purposes incidental thereto, the Southwesterly line of said 
easement is the southwesterly line of PARCEL 'B'. 

This description includes the land or portions of the land described in the following deeds: Book 355, 
page 552, recorded on September 7, 1955; Book 29, page 316, recorded on January 23,1948; Book 
1618, page 1192, recorded August 11, 1980 all Humboldt County Official Records. 

PARCEL 'C' 

BEGINNING at a point on the West line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 at a point locat'ed North 1° 18' 24" West, 150 feet from the Southwest comer thereof; 

thence South 89° 46' 14" East (described as "East" in Instrument No. 2008-8706-5, Parcel 'M', 
Sub Parcel One), 320 feet; 

thence South 80° 15' 30" East along the North line of the land conveyed by Silvio and Louise 
Mazzetti to Eel River Sawmills, Inc. by deed recorded on AU9ust 11,1980, in Book 1618, page 1192, 
Humboldt County Official Records, (South 80° 52' 11" East according to said deed) 186.39 feet to the 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING of the land herein described; 

thence South 1" 18' 24" East, 394.76 feet to the Northerly line of the 4 rod wide strip of land 
conveyed for railroad putposes, Book 12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 

thence along said line, South 59° 24' 20' East, 248.38 feet; 
thence leaving said lil)e, North 37" 52' East, 120:43 feet; 
thence North 4° 52' East, 371 feet to the North line of said land conveyed to Eel River 

Sawmills, Inc.; 
thence along said line North 80° 15' 30' West (North 80° 52' 11" West according to said deed 

to Eel River Sawmills, Inc.), 333 feet to the True Point of Beginning. 

INCLUDING a non-exclusive easement 24 feet wide for ingress, egress, drainage and public and/or 
private utilities and all other purposes incidental thereto, the Southwesterly line of said easement is 
described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where the west line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 intersects the North line of the 4 rod strip of land conveyed for railroad purposes per Book 
12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 

thence South 59" 24' 20" East along said railroad land, 155 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING of the Easement herein described; 

thence continuing South 59° 24' 20" East, 437.27 feet to the westerly line of PARCEL 'C'. 

page 2 

2011-17119-5 

37 



· . 

EXHIBIT 'A' (continued) 
PARCEL 'c' (continued) 

This description includes portions of the land described in the following deeds: Book 29, page 316. 
recorded on January 23, 1948; Book 1618, page 1192, recorded on August 11, 1980; Book 159, 
page 342, recorded on February 11 , 1951 , all Humboldt County Official Records. 

pARCEL '0' 

BEGINNING at a point on the North line of the South Half of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 36 located North 89° 46' 14" West, 11.71 chains ( 772.86 feet) from the Northeast corner 
thereof; 

thence along said line, North 89° 46' 14" West, 715.99 feet to the intersection with the line 
described as "South 80° 52' 11" East, 907.35 feet to the South line of said subdivision" in the deed 
from Silvio and Louise Mazzetti to Eel River Sawmills, Inc. by deed recorded on August 11, 1980, in 
Book 1618, page 1192, Humboldt County Official Records; 

thence along said line, North 80° 15' 30" West (North 80· 52' 11" West according to said 
deed), 387.96 feet to a point located South 80· 15' 30" East, 519.39 feet from the True Point of 
Beginning described in said deed from Mazzetti to Eel River Sawmills, Inc.; 

thence South 4· 52' West, 371 feet; 
thence South 37° 52' West, 120.43 feet to the Northerly line of the 4 rod wide strip of land 

conveyed for railroad purposes, Book 12 of Deeds, page 452, Humboldt County Records; 
thence along the Northerly line of said railroad, South 59· 24' 20" East, 1106.91 feet; 
thence continuing along said railroad, on a curve to the Left with a radius of 2847 feet, through 

an angle of 5· 42' 29" and a Length of 283.63 feet to a point lying South of the Point of Beginning; 
thence North, 1091 .56 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

This description includes portions of the land described in the following deeds: Book 29, page 316, 
recorqed on January 23, 1948; Book 1618, page 1192, recorded on August 11, 1980; Book 159, 
page 342, recorded on February 11, 1951, all Humboldt County Official Records. 

NOTE: A Record of Survey is being prepared for this EXHIBIT 'A'. 

~ Wallace E. Wright, ~ 
License Expires: 10-31-2010 

Page 3 End Description 

2011-17119-5 

38 



I 

• 

kl'turn to 

· £~a:~p.e ~. J:ohn.son 

~to ~.l1, t .. C;.Ufornh , 

Ordet No. 107Z" UAB'J: 

'II;' ii, .' ' 
: .::.;: i 

: ·1 · ' , . 

I 

Dilted, 

tiRAXT UF.t-:ll (lr:di\'iduOII) 

For \',llul' ft"C'l· jwd, we, :OWARD C. P.A..~:i .aneI EVEtYN J. P.A.'iPTON, his ..,1£e 

'0 EUGt."': E E. JOHN:Dt: lad I'!lO'SA D. JOllNSON, hh wite, &IS JOint tenant. 
)' 

alllh:u rl..·.1 1 prop .. "t~ .. tlu.lh.' in rh~ 

eiliully ot Ihurboldt 

PARCEL O~'E 

DECtNNINC oa the Sectlon Uce at .. point which h distanr thereon i~5. 96 
feet north fro. the quartet lec.t.loa cornet OQ the c .. t. Hae of Section 36, 
Townahip 2 North, Rauge 1 Welt, Humboldt Meridian; 

aad running thence welt S)S.SO feet; 
thence north SO feet to the true point ot besiDDlns of the pGrcel of land to 

be here deacribed; 
then~e fro~ satd true pOint of begInning run east lSO teet. 
thence north 150 feet; 
thence WC3t 150 feet: and 
theD~ louth 150 feet to Slid true point of be$Jlnning. 

PAllCEL n.'O 

A DOD-exciulive right of vay fgr ingrcsi and elres! and pu~lic utility 
purpo~es OVcr a Itrip ~f land deacribed al follows: 

Beslnn1-as OD t.h~ ::"uth Une 13£ the parcel ot land above dC:llcrLbcd at .. 
pgLnt which 11 20 £t 'sc frglD the .outhwest corner of • .aid pucel: 

and runnins chene( ~ h 50 feet; 
thence "'cst 9S fet:. • the northweat: corner of che 10.10 ae~e trac t of 

land deeded tg Rocco CappL and vife by deed dated January IS 1941; 
thence 50uth along tbe vett line of .aid tract deeded to C.ppl, 630.96 

feet tg the aguthwelt corner gf .,id tract; 
thence ~est along the north line gf • ItrLp of land deeded to The Pacific 

Lumber Compuny by deed dated Deceeher 11 1883 and recorded in Book 12 of 
Deed. pase 453 (nov owned by Northweatcrn racific Ral1r~ad Company) IS feet 
more or leu to a point which 11 diatant. 13 feet wue of the west line of the 
10.:0 ae1'<l: tnet of land conveyed tg lo:co eeppi and vUe as afere .. ie!; 

thence north paraUel with tbe weat Hoe of I.id 10.10 acre tract of hnd 
650.96 feet, 

thence •• at 90 teet ~o • point ",bich 15 due louth of the aouthwest corner 
of Parcel Oae above de,eribed; 

thence dortn 30 fett to the southwelt corner DE .aid parcel one above Je,cd~c 
and tih"tnce east along the south line of ... id percc 1 20 feet to the pot.nt 

or bctslDn1ng. 

~t~)e:~ 13 

STATE OF' CALIFORNIA 

598 
39 



DEED 
• '\0:' • !.-" , ".. _ ~_ K"Q"~ f/QIHQII, belqj: ',Uo __ .. 
.. , JOJIIf •• ' !llDMPIIOJ .... MAROAU! R. '!IIOIU'SOW hb Vite 

, 
~ .. 'iDvAD c. JIAMI>!'OJI and ftlLYJI · ,T. IWIP'!O!" hUIbaJi4 aucI vite .. 

Joint 'reDant •• 

- ' .u .. t ... ; d;trl7.a1 ... "'" Is tIIe ___ -:-__ ------__________ _ 

~ .. R_ ''!to tu'- of c.IIfomia, bowIded lad deoc:rIbed u foUowa io wit: 

'm' 11IJIliKI On t!le ' .eot1 .. n Hne ata point 1oIh1ch 1s distant thereon , 9'~~ teet north ot the quarter sect10n corner on the east l1ne ot 
n~on 36 1n 'roWn.hip 2 North of Range 1 ~;eat, Humboldt Meridian; 

',aDa irumdnll thence nC!l'th along the section line 5'24.04 teet to the 
DDPtb liDe 01 the lOutheast quarter of the northeast quarter of said 
8eet1~ ,361 ' 

th ot watt alone the 8ubdivisional line 772.86 teet to the northwest 
corner ,ot the 27.47 Icre traet at land deeded to Marjorie Conn1ek by 
dee4 'of record in Boolt ,2i3 of Peeds at page 325',HlUDboldt County Records; 
, thenoe ' louth alo,,« the vest 'line of aald 27.'47 acre tract 822 reet 
to a poi!lt vhi eh is d1ltant , thereon' 262 teet north of the north linll at 

, thll .trip of land deeded ,to the Pacific ~b8r Company by deed 'dated 
Dec_bel' 11th lBB3 recorded 1n Book 12 ofLDeeds at page 45'3 (nov owned 
by Worthwe.tern Pacific I\,allroa~!' CGlipany>, ' , ' -

thence east lSO feet to a point 'vtI1eh ~s dhtant 13 -fe,et vest of the 
ve.t Une of the 10.,10 ' Icre trllc_t 0-1' land' dlleded -~:'o Rocco Cappi 'and vi re 
by deed dated ' January. l5,th 19411 : 

thenei. south parallel with the w,,~t lire of ~B1d 10.10 Bcre traot 322 
teet to the north ' li~ of said land of Northveste~ Pac1fie ~a11road 
Company I I' 

thence easterly alone the north line or said R ilroad lands 15' feet, 
aDra or le8., to the southwest eorner of said IO.~O acre tract deeded 
to Capp11 " ' ' 

thence north 630.96 t~et to the northwest eorner thereof; 
~d th,IInee east '610.50 feet to the point of b!!g1nn1ng. 

Contain1nll IO.ltl acres, more or- less. ' 

, 

I, 

. ·'·~IoJ" t;b'Q' .......... 

-,""''''-

" 

16681 
~o.i IIfn.JESfOF 
........ !!P.!K?' .• J!!~ 

,'IIIL,~.IIf=e.229 
OCr 18 4 36 ~ S5 

"Wilillldl coum IIE.,a,." 
==.~_.t.~=-• 

.... " 

, 
~ .z.. L · ~ .• 

I', 40 



RelUID to 

12232 
ft[~'D!D AT _[OUUT O' 

!!!DI!lI &S:TIICr 1_ CIt. 

69- OIilcll( 
"L~.[Ca'.1 '0.510 

n' tluL._ ... _ ............................ .. JIJI. 18 "!d AM ;952 
A!§:_ .... __ ........... .. _ ...... ___ ..... .. 
. ".~ .. -.. . .. _ ......... _ ... - .. " ........................... _ ....... _-
Order No. lOUD PAllr 

GRANT DEED (Individual) 

For value I't'C'eivcd , va, JUIJ.O .1. iOVAI .. ad )(I:J.L\ lOYAl, bit vUe. aad LOUtS 1OfA!, 
ad XAlT lOYAl, hta vUe , 

GRANT.......... r::HA!LIIS II. CL\U •• d IWJDI! !'!AIL CLAIX, hh vU., .. J01 •• 
te1UlDU, 

;U th.u reAl property .~tUAte in the 

Count)' cf 1Iaboldt • State oJ CaJi(omia, dnaibc.'d as 10Uo ... : 

IIGIBlIKa OQ the welt ltDe af the tract of land beretofore d •• ded to 
""Jod. Co_c~, b, de.d do.d rob .... .,. 6, 1934, .... rded 10 look 213 <IE 
n..dl , ... 325, bMoldt CoUll':1 racorU, at a pabloc when the ... 11 
iAttll'''ct.'' ., the aorth 1he of the .trip of laDd deedad to 'rbe 'acUic 
l.amL..- ea.paD1. ~1 deed dated Jleq:Mer 11, 1883. "l'ecardad h look U of 
De.d. P'" 453 ( __ • bt DIe 1I0r_ ...... P.cU~c IIUroo' eo..uyl': .D' rlD1q tbOllca .. orth doaa tlto ... tlloo of .. 14 tr.e. of 1 ... do.de. 
to Caaa1ck. 261 feet; 

thence aut 150 f .. t to a po1at, vh1ch b dUt&DC 13 feet n.t of tIw ... t 
Hoe of the tract of lao' deeded to 1.0«0 Cepp1 ad vU., b1 40 .. dated. .7._.,. 15, 1941; 

t"tnOl Ibutla pudle! with the add we.,t Hue 322 feet co tbe AOrtb 1101 
o( lad of .. t.4 lol'thwatem Pac.Utc l.aU%0Ii4 Call1pCD1f 

aDd eMllce YUter1,. alOllS •• ~.d taet _utloaed lJ..De 162 f .. t to the polDt of 
ba'1AR1 .... 

. :Be1»& a portiOll of eM .oathe •• t quarter of DOrthe •• t quarter at 
See.loa 36 in T ..... h1p 2 .orth ..... 1 W •• t, ""'oUt Ilar14ta • • 

IlCIPfIllC tbe"l'lfr_. a Itrip of 1&114 of tl-e ua1fo'a "idth of 125 
f .. t cortb lide tbereof. 

ba. tIut land II_a do.or1.ba4 OIl _1 •• 1 .. rilllt of "or 
lS off tIut tIltoln ... st lid. tiler .. ! and '" uc:hlal .. rtgbt of WIT 
12 !tat vido ott tbo ... Ur •• outll .14. tIt ...... t. 

-

41 



Community Development Department 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 
Industrial Commercial Zone Development Standards 

Section 17.20.120 Rio Dell Municipal Code 

17.20.110 Industrial Commercial or IC zone. 

The purpose of the industrial commercial zone is to provide for industrial and commercial uses. 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses, including, but not limited to: 

(a) Industrial uses as described in the industrial land use designation and compatible commercial uses 
described in the community commercial land use designation; 

(b) Public facility needs such as a wastewater treatment plant; 

(c) Motor vehicle repair, maintenance and fueling; and 

(d) Telecommunications facilities and manufacturing. 

(2) Uses Permitted with a Use Permit. 

(a) Lodging; and 

(b) Child care. 

(c) Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in Ihe zone. 

(3) Other Regulations. See Table 17.20.110 for development standards for the IC zone. 

• 

Table 17.20.110 Development Standards in the 
Industrial Commercial or IC Zone 

Site Development Standard 

Minimum Lot Area 

Maximum Ground Coverage: 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR): 

Minimum Lot Width: 

Minimum Open Space 

Minimum Yard 

Front: 

Rear: 

Side: 

Maximum Building Height: 

Zone Requirement 

20,000 square feet 

Not applicable 

Proportion of lot area: 1.5 on 20% 
and 0.35 on 80% 

Not applicable 

10% 

10 feet 

o unless abutting residential, in 
which case 10 feet 

o unless abutting residential, in 
which case 10 feet. 

4 stories or 65 feet 

ATTACHMENT 3 42 



Community Development Deportment 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 
Natural Resource Zone Development Standards 

Section 17 .20.120 Rio Dell Municipal Code 

17.20.120 Natural Resource or NR zone. 

The primary purpose of the natural resource zone is to provide natural resource protection. 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses. 

(a) Resource protection; 

(b) Public recreation where compatible with resource management and protection; 

(c) Management for fish and wildlife habitat; and 

(d) Wetland/watershed restoration. 

(2) Uses Permitted with a Use Permit. 

(a) Timber production (with TPZ overlay zone); 

(b) Aggregate resources production; 

(c) Visitor-serving use; and 

(d) Renewable energy development. 

OTY or 

~ DELL 

(e) Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in the zone. 

(3) Other Regulations. See Table 17.20.120 for development standards for the natural resource (NR) 
zone. 

Table 17.20.120 Devetopment Standards in the Natural Resource or NR Zone 

Site Development Standard Zone Requirement 

Minimum Lot Area: Not applicable 

Maximum Ground Coverage: Not applicable 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR): • Not applicable 

Minimum Lot Width: Not applicable 

Minimum Open Space: 10% 

Minimum Yard 

Front: 25 feet 

Rear: 25 feet 

Side: 10 feet 

Maximum Building Height: 2 stories or 35 feet 

" 

43 



Wendt lot line Adjustment 

APN No's. 205-111-028, 029, 030 and 050; Case No. lLA 16-02 

Conditions of Approval 

Approval of the lot line Adjustment is conditioned upon the following terms and 

requirements: 

1. The instruments of record as approved by the Planning Department shall be recorded and 
the lot line adjustment shall be completed within thirty-six (36) months of approval of the lot 
line adjustment. 

Prior to expiration, the applicant or property owner may request extension of the filing 
deadline by submitting a written extension request and a filing fee as set by resolution of the 
City Council. 

The Planning Director may grant a maximum of three years extension of the filing deadline if 
the Planning Director finds that the conditions under which the tentative approval was issued 
have not significantly changed. 

2. A Notice of lot line Adjustment shall be recorded for the resulting parcels. The following 
information must be submitted to the Planning Department for review prior to recordation: 

(a) A copy of the deeds to be recorded for the adjusted parcels; provided however, that 
when the parcels being adjusted are held in common ownership, no new deeds shall be 
required for the preparation of the Notice of lot line Adjustment. 

(b) A lot Book Guarantee or Preliminary Title Report current within 6 months or other 
evidence satisfactory to the Planning Department regarding ownership of parcels. 

(c) Completed "Notice of lot line Adjustment and Certificate of Subdivision Compliance" 
forms (these are available from the Planning Department). 

3. When the parcels being adjusted are not held in common ownership, copies of the executed 
deeds (signed but not recorded) m·ust be submitted for review and approval to the Planning 
Department. 

4. Pursuant to Section 8762 of the Business and Professions Code a Record of Survey 
monumenting the corners of the new property line(s) may be required. The City Engineer shall 
not require the Record of Survey if in his opinion anyone of the following findings can be made: 

(a) The new boundary line(s) are already adequately monumented of record. 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

ATTACHMENT 4 44 



(b) The new boundary line(s) can be accurately described from Government Subdivision 
Sections or aliquot parts thereof. 

(c) The new boundary line(s) can be accurately described and located from existing 
monuments of record. 

(d) The new boundary is based upon physical features (i.e. roads, creeks, etc.) which 
themselves monument the line. 

S. The applicants shall provide documentation form the County of Humboldt Tax Collector that 
all property taxes for the parcels involved in the lot line adjustment have been paid in full if 
payable, or secured if not payable to the satisfaction of the County Tax Collector's Office, and 
all special assessments on the parcels must be paid or reapportioned to the satisfaction of the 
affected assessment district. Please contact the Tax Collector's Office approximately three to 
four weeks prior to submitting the required conditions of approval. 

6. The applicant shall pay the application processing fees within 30 days of billing. 

Informational Note: 

1. Approval of the lot line Adjustment does not guarantee that the parcels are suitable for 
development in accordance with existing and future regulations . 

.. 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

45 



RESOLUTION NO. PC 101-2016 

O IY Of 

J~ DEL.L 
c .... """" 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

APPROVING THE WENDT LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT 

WHEREAS Wendt Construction recently submitted an application for a lot line adjustment 

between four parcels of about 20, 10, .6 and .5 acres; and 

WHEREAS the proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the parcels into 15+/-, 8.4+/-, 

4.9+/- and 3.6+/- acres respectively; and 

WHEREAS the parcels are planned and zoned Industrial Commercial (IC) and a portion (the 

hillside) of Parcel F is designated Natural Resources; and 

WHEREAS the Industrial Commercial designation requires a minimum parcel size of 20,000 

square feet; and 

WHEREAS the Natural Resource designation does not specify a minimum parcel size; and 

WHEREAS the resulting parcels comply with the requirements of the applicable zones; and 

WHEREAS based on a review of the Preliminary Title Report, current deeds and creation deeds, 

staff has determined that the four parcels are legal, separate parcels created in compliance 

with the Subdivision Map Act and local regulations; and 

WHEREAS th~ proposed lot line adjustm~t does not result in any nonconformity in regards to • 

setbacks or lot coverage and does not require the relocation of any easements or utilities; and 

WHEREAS the applicant has submitted evidence in support of making the required findings and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed the submitted application and evidence and has referred the 

project to various agencies for review, comments and recommendations; and 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

ATTACHMENT 5 46 



WHEREAS based on comments from referral agencies, information submitted by the applicant 

and the recommended conditions of approval, the evidence supports the finding that the 

proposed lot line adjustment is in conformance with all applicable policies of the Zoning 

Regulations, General Plan and Building Regulations; and 

WHEREAS the area being adjusted has an average slope of less than 20%; and 

WHEREAS staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 

15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption applies to lot line 

adjustments with an average slope of less than 20% and does not result in any changes in land 

use or density. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented 
in the staff report that the proposed lot line adjustment complies with all of the following 
required findings: 

1. That the proposed lot line adjustment is consistent with the City's General 
Plan; and 

2. That the proposed lot line adjustment complies with the requirements and 
standards of the City's zoning regulations; and 

3. That the proposed lot line adjustment complies with the requirements and 
standards of the City's Building Regulations; and 

4. That the proposed lot line adjustment Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 
15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell approves the 
proposed lot line adjustment subject to the recommended conditions of approval. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell at their meeting 
of September 27, 2016 by the following vote: 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

47 



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on September 27, 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Nick Angeloff, Chairperson 

ArrEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 101-2016 adopted by the 
Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on September 27,2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Wendt Lot Line Adjustment September 2016 

48 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

em Of 

~ DELL ..... 

For Meeting of: September 27,2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

September 19, 2016 

Extension Approval of the Teasley Subdivision; 364 Center Street 
File No. 052-301-012; Case No's. PMS 12-01 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staffs report regarding the proposed subdivision approval extension; 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; 

3. Close the public hearing; 

4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 100-2016 approving the requested extension for an additional 
12 months. The extension shall expire one year after the effective date. 

Discussion 

The Planning Commission originally approved the Teasley minor subdivision of a 24,750 square 
foot parcel into two parcels of about 12,040 and 12,710 square feet on July 25,2012. The 
original approval is good for two years. The applicant made application for two one year 
extensions. 

Section 66452.6 of the Map Act and Section 16.15.130(2)(c) of the RDMC limits subdivision 
extensions to twelve (12) months. Both local regulations and the Subdivision Map Act allow a 
total of a three (3) year extension to the original two (2) year approval. The total life of a 
tentatively approved map is limited to five (5) years. This extension would be the final extension 
allowed. 

Teasley Subdivision Exlens;on PC Seplember 27, 2016 

49 



Both proposed parcels are developed with single family homes and residential accessory 
structures. Frontage improvements (curb, gutter and sidewalk) and paving was required along 
the frontage of the property. In addition, the applicant was required to move or relocate the 
existing storage sheds to meet setback requirements. Attachment 1 includes a copy of the 
original staff report and conditions of approval. 

Section 16.15.130(2) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code identifies the process for approving 
extensions, including application submittal, the required Planning Commission action, time limits 
of extensions, conditions of approval, potential appeals and cost recovery. 

In reviewing requests for subdivision extensions, staff considers any changes in the original 
required findings. The original required findings are identified below: 

1. That the proposed subdivision together with the provisions for its design and 
improvements is consistent with the City's General Plan; and 

2. That the proposed subdivision complies with the requirements and standards 
of the City's zoning regulations; and 

3. That the proposed subdivision complies with the requirements and standards 
of the City's subdivision regulations; and 

4. That the proposed subdivision is physically suitable for the type of 
development; and 

5. The proposed subdivision is not likely to cause substantial environmental 
damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

There have been no changes to the original required findings. The subdivision is still consistent 
with the General Plan, Zoning and Subdivision regulations. In addition, the subdivision (parcels) 
are suitable for their intended use and there is no evidence to suggest that granting the 
extension will cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish 
or wildlife or their habitat. 

Staff determined that the original approval of the subdivision was Statutorily Exempt pursuant to 
Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption applies to the 
division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential use into four or fewer parcels when 
the division is consistent with the General Plan and zoning and no variances or exceptions are 
required. There is no evidence to suggest that the extension of the original subdivision approval 
wiJI result in a significant impact to the environment. Therefore, staff recommends. that 
subdivision extension approval be found to be statutorily exempt pursuant to Section 15315 of 
the CEQA Guidelines. 

Because there have been no changes in the General Plan, Zoning and Subdivision regulations 
which would affect the original approval, staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
approve a one (1) year extension to the approved subdivision. Accordingly, the subdivision wiJI 
expire one year after the effective date of the Planning Commission's decision. 

Teasley Subdivision Exlension PC Seplember 27, 2016 

50 



Attachments: 

Attachment 1: Original Staff Report and Conditions of Approval. 

Attachment 2: Resolution No. PC 100-2016 

Teasley Subdivision Extension PC September 27, 2016 

51 



RESOLUTION NO. PC 100-2016 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

APPROVING A ONE (1) YEAR EXTENSION OF THE TEASLEY SUBDIVISION: 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission originally approved the Teasley minor subdivision of a 
24,750 square foot parcel into two parcels of about 12,040 and 12,710 square feet on July 25, 
2012; and 

WHEREAS the approval became effective on August 9, 2012 and was set to expire on August 
9,2014; and 

WHEREAS the applicant submitted a request for a one year extension in August of 2014; and 

WHEREAS the applicant submitted another request for a one year extension in August of 2015; 
and 

WHEREAS the applicant's agent recently submitted an application for another one year 
extension; and 

WHEREAS this is the final extension allowed by both State and local regulations; and 

WHEREAS if approved the subdivision approval will expire on August 9, 2016; and 

WHEREAS the proposed parcels are developed with single family homes and residential 
accessory structures; and 

WHEREAS frontage improvements (curb, gutter and sidewalk) and paving was required along 
the frontage of the property and the applicCint was required to move or relocate existing storage 
sheds to meet setback requirements; and 

WHEREAS Section 16.15.130(2) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code identifies the process for 
approving extensions, including application submittal, the required Planning Commission action, 
time limits of extensions, conditions of approval, potential appeals and cost recovery; and 

WHEREAS Section 66452.6 of the Map Act and Section 16.15.130(2)(c) of the RDMC limits 
subdivision extensions to twelve (12) months; and 

Teasley Subdivision Extension September 27, 2016 

ATTACHMENT 2 52 



WHEREAS both local regulations and the Subdivision Map Act allow a total of a three (3) year 
extension to the original two (2) year approval. The total life of a tentatively approved map is 
limited to five (5) years; and 

WHEREAS in reviewing requests for subdivision extensions, staff considers any changes in the 
original required findings. The original required findings are identified below: 

1. That the subdivision together with the provisions for its design and 
improvements is consistent with the City's General Plan; and 

2. That the subdivision complies with the requirements and standards of the 
City's zoning regulations; and 

3. That the subdivision complies with the requirements and standards of the 
City's subdivision regulations; and 

4. That the subdivision is physically suitable for the type of development; and 

5. The subdivision is not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or 
substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat; and 

WHEREAS there have been no changes to the original required findings. The subdivision is still 
consistent with the General Plan, Zoning and Subdivision regulations. In addition, the parcels 
are suitable for their intended use and there is no evidence to suggest that granting the 
extension will cause sUbstantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish 
or wildlife or their habitat; and 

WHEREAS staff has determined that the extension is Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 
15315 of the CEOA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Planning Commission finds that based on 
evidence on file and presented in the staff report that the proposed subdivision extension 
complies with all of the following original required findings: 

1. That the subdivision together with the provisions for its design and 
improvements is consistent with the City's General Plan; and 

2. That the subdivision complies with the requirements and standards of the 
City's zoning regulations; and 

3. That the subdivision complies with the requirements and standards of the 
City's subdivision regulations; and 

4. That the subdivision is physically suitable for the type of development; and 

5. The subdivision is not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or 
substantially and avoidably fish or wildlife or their habitat; and 

Teasley Subdivision Extension September 27, 2016 

53 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell approves 
the subdivision extension subject to the original conditions of approval. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell at their 
meeting of September 27, 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Nick Angeloff, Chair 

ATTEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 100-2016 adopted by the 
Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on September 27,2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Teasley Subdivision Extension September 27,2016 

S4 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

CrN Of 

~ DELL --
For Meeting of: July 25,2012 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director 

Through: Jim Stretch, City Manager 

Date: June 18,2012 

Subject: Teasley Subdivision; 364 Center Street 
File No. 052-301-012; Case No's. PMS 12-01 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staffs report regarding the proposed subdivision; 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; 

3. Close the public hearing; 

4. Find that the proposed subdivision: (1) is consistent with the Rio Dell General Plan; (2) 
complies with the requirements and standards of the City's zoning regulations; (3) 
complies with the requirements and standards of the City's subdivision regulations; (4) is 
physically suitable for the type of development; and (5) is Categorically Exempt pursuant 
to Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations 

5. Make the following motion: "I move to make the all the required findings, based on 
evidence in the staff report and approve the proposed subdivision subject to the 
recommended conditions of approval." 

Summary 

The applicant is proposing a minor subdivision of a 24,750 square foot parcel into two parcels of 
about 12,040 and 12,710 square feet respectively. Both proposed parcels are developed with 
single family homes and a residential accessory structure. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

ATTACHMENT 1 55 



Frontage improvements (curb, gutter and sidewalk) and paving will be required along the 
frontage of the property. In addition, the applicant will be required to move or relocate the 
existing storage sheds to meet setback requirements. All referral agencies have recommended 
approval of the proposed subdivision. 

Based on the proposed project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption applies to the 
division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential use into four or fewer parcels when 
the division is consistent with the General Plan and zoning and no variances or exceptions are 
required. 

Based on a site inspection, the nature of the proposed project, comments from referral 
agencies, staff believes the project will not result in a significant impact on the environment. 

The applicant has submitted evidence in support of making the required findings. Therefore 
staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the project as conditioned. 

Required Findings 

Pursuant to Section 66474 of the Subdivision Map Act and Title 16 of the Rio Dell MuniCipal 
Code (ROMC) in order approve this project the Planning Commission must determine that the 
applicant has submitted evidence in support of making all of the following required findings: 

1. That the proposed subdivision together with the provisions for its design and improvements 
is consistent with the City's General Plan; and 

2. That the proposed subdivision complies with the requirements and standards of the City's 
zoning regulations; and 

3. That the proposed subdivision complies with the requirements and standards of the City's 
subdivision regulations; and 

4. That the proposed subdivision is physically suitable for the type of development; and 

5. The proposed subdivision is not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or 
substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

Staff Analysis 

,. General Plan Consistency: 

The General Plan designation for the project site is Urban Residential (UR). The Urban 
Residential designation provides for neighborhood residential areas and establishes two density 
ranges. The minimum lot size is 6,000 square feet for detached single family dwellings with a 
density of 4 - 7 units per net acre, and 4,000 square feet for attached single family dwellings 
with a density range of 7 - 10 units per acre. The proposed subdivision is based on detached 
single family dwellings. Proposed parcels sizes range from 12,040 and 12,710 square feet 
respectively. The proposed density is 3.97 dwelling units per acre. The proposed subdivision 
complies with the required minimum lot size and the density range of 4 - 7 units per acre. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

56 



There are a number of General Plan goals and pOlicies related to the proposed subdivision. 
The following table identifies the evidence which supports the finding that the proposed 
subdivision is in conformance with all applicable policies of the General Plan. 

Relevant Plan Summary of General Plan Goal, Evidence Which Supports the Required 
Section(s) Policy or Standard Finding 

Natural Preserve drainage channels, habitat Both proposed parcels are currently 
Environment and open space. developed and no additional 

G2.1-3 development is proposed. Therefore 
the proposed subdivision will not 
adversely affect existing drainage 
channels , riparian habitat or open 
space. 

Natural Regulate clearing and development Both proposed parcels are currently 
Environment of steep slopes, river, stream and developed and no additional 

G2.1-5 drainage channels. development is proposed. Therefore 
the proposed subdivision will not require 
the clearing and development of steep 
slopes, river, stream or drainage 
channels. 

Natural Maintain existing air quality. Both proposed parcels are currently 
Environment developed and no additional 

G2.1-8 development is proposed. Therefore 
the proposed subdivision will not affect 
existing air quality. 

Natural Minimize loss of life and property The project site is not located within a 
Environment from natural and man-made mapped flood zone, dam inundation 

G2.1-9 hazards. zone or Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 
Hazard zone. There are no known 
man-made hazards, including 
contaminated soils, on site or in the 
area 

Soils & Require geo-technical reports to Again, both proposed parcels are 
Geologic ensure that slope and stability currently developed and no additional 

Resources measures are incorporated into development is proposed. In addition, 
P2.1 .1-4 project design. the parcels are virtually flat and there 

are no issues associated with slope 
stability. 

Aesthetics Encourage street trees and Both proposed parcels are currently 
P2.2.5-2 landscaping in new developments. developed and no additional . 

development is proposed . 
Water Incorporate on-site drainage Both proposed parcels are currently 

Resources facilities such as retention and developed and no additional 
P2.1.2-3 infiltration systems to reduce run-off development is proposed. Therefore 

and maximize infiltration. the proposed subdivision will not result 
in additional stormwater run-off. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

, 

57 



Relevant Plan Summary of General Plan Goal, Evidence Which Supports the Required 
Section(s) Policy or Standard Finding 

Biological Require setbacks (buffers) from There are no known environmentally 
Resources environmentally sensitive habitat sensitive areas onsite. The closest 
P2.1.7-2 areas (ESHA's) such as riparian environmentally sensitive area is the eel 

corridors, forested or wetland areas. River and associated riparian area 
which is approximately 1,200 feet east 
of the project site. 

Public Cooperate with the Rio Dell Fire The Rio Dell Fire Protection District has 
Services Protection District to ensure that recommended approval of the proposed 
P2.2.3-2 emergency services are adequate. subdivision. 
Public Encourage new development to The only required infrastructure 

Services contribute its fair share of improvements are curb, gutter, 
P2.2.3-4 infrastructure improvements to sidewalks and some minimal paving 

serve the proposed development. along the frontage of the_parcel. 
Public Require underground utilities for This policy has only been applied to 

Services new development. new development. Where development 
P2.2.3-4 is existing on the proposed parcels, 

utilities have not been required to be 
placed underground. 

Housing Minimize housing construction in The project site is not located within a 
A-13 areas subject to hazards, such as flood zone or an area of geologic 

floodin~l orgeoiQgic instability-, instability. 
Community Provide a safe and balanced The project is conditioned to require 
Environment transportation system for curb, gutter, sidewalks and paving along 

G2.2-12 pedestrians, transit riders, bicyclists the frontage of the parcel. Public 
and vehicles. transportation is available and within 

walking distance of the proposed 
project. Recommended road 
improvements will provide for the safe 
movement of vehicles. 

Cultural Coordinate with outside entities Because both proposed parcels are 
Resources regarding land use decisions and developed the project was not referred 
P2.2.4-1 impacts to cultural resources. to the Bear River Band. 

Again, based on comments from referral agencies and information submitted by the applicant, 
the evidence supports the finding that the proposed subdivision is in conformance with all 
applicable policies of the General Plan. 

2. Zoning Consistency: 

The project site is in an area zoned Urban Residential (UR). The purpose of the Urban 
Residential or UR zone is to provide neighborhood residential areas with varying densities for 
single-family dwellings. The following regulations apply in all Urban Residential or UR zones: 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses. 

(a) Detached single-family dwellings. 

(2) Uses Permitted with a Use Permit. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

58 



(a) Attached dwellings with a minimum lot size of 4,000 square feet; 

(b) Home occupation businesses, including health services related businesses; 

(c) Rooming and boarding of not more than two persons not employed on the premises; 

(d) Public and private non-commercial recreation facilities; 

(e) Schools, churches, civic and cultural uses including City offices and day care 
centers. 

(3) Development Standards. 

Development Standard Zone Requirement 

Minimum Lot Area 6,000 square feet 

Maximum Ground Coverage 50% 

Minimum Lot Width 60 feet 

Minimum Open Space 50% 

Minimum Yards 

Front 20 feet 

Rear 10 feet 

Side 5 feet 

Maximum Building Height 35 feet 

The proposed subdivision would create two lots of 12,040 and 12,710 square feet. Therefore, 
the proposed lots meet the minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet. In addition, each lot meets 
the required minimum lot width of 60 feet. As previously indicated, the applicant will be required 
to move or relocate the existing storage sheds to meet setback requirements. The project has 
been conditioned accordingly. 

Any additional development must comply with the lot coverage, open space, setback and 
building height requirements for the Urban Residential zone. Review for compliance will at the 
time a building permit is applied for. 

• 
Based on the proposed subdivision, the proposed project complies with the requirements of the 
City's Zoning Regulations. 

Teas/ey Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

S9 



3. Subdivision Regulations Consistency: 

The following table identifies the evidence which supports findings that the proposed subdivision 
is in conformance with all applicable policies and standards of the City's Subdivision 
Regulations, Title 16 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC) and the City's Standard 
Improvement Specifications. 

Relevant Summary of Regulation or Standard Evidence Which Supports the Required 
Section(s) Finding 

16.05.030 General Plan and Zoning See discussion above. Based on 
Compliance evidence submitted by the applicant and 

comments from referral agencies, staff 
believes the proposed subdivision is 
consistent with the City General Plan 
and Zoning regulations. 

16.10.040 Tentative Map Requirements The Tentative Map requirements identify 
the required information on the map. 
The submitted Tentative Map for the 
proposed subdivision complies with the 
requirements of Section 16.10.040 of 
the ROMC. 

16.10.050 Accompanying Data and Reports 

". Soils Report A Preliminary Soils Report was not 
required because both of the proposed 
parcels are already developed with 
single family residences. 

". Title Report The required Title Report was submitted 
with the application. 

". Environmental Assessment Based on the proposed project, staff 
has determined that the project is 
Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 
15315 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, 
Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15315 
of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption 
applies to the division of property in 
urbanized areas zoned for residential 
use into four or fewer parcels when the 
division is consistent with the General 
Plan and zoning and no variances or 
exceptions are required. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

60 



Relevant Summary of Regulation or Standard Evidence Which Supports the Required 
Section(s) Finding 

16.25.020 Required Improvements The project is conditioned on installing 
curb, gutter, sidewalks and paving along 

~ Street/Frontage Improvements the frontage of the parcel. The 
improvements must be completed or 
bonded for prior to the recordation of the 
Final Map. 

~ Storm Drainage Again because the parcels are already ,. 
developed, no drainage improvements 
are proposed or required. 

~ Sewer Each of the proposed lots will be ,. 
provided community sewer and water 

~ Water service. 
Standard 

Improvement » Utilities Utilities, including electric, gas, 
Specifications telephone and cable services are 

already in place. 

~ Fire Hydrants The proposed parcels are currently 
developed, located within an existing 
neighborhood with existing fire hydrants. 

~ Street Lights The proposed parcels are currently 
developed, located within an existing 
neiQhborhood with existinQ streetliQhts. 

Based on the proposed improvements and recommended conditions of approval , staff believes 
the proposed subdivision is consistent with the City Subdivision Ordinance and the City's 
Standard Improvement Specifications. 

4. That the proposed subdivision is physically suitable for the type of development: 

Again, both of the proposed parcels are currently developed with single family residences and 
accessory structures. Accordingly, each lot is suitable for single family residential uses. 

5. The proposed subdivision is not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or 
substantially and avoidably fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

Based on the proposed project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption applies to the 
division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential use into four or fewer parcels when 
the division is consistent with the General Plan and zoning and no variances or exceptions are 
required. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

61 



Attachments: 

Attachment 1: Conditions of Approval 

Attachment 2: Resolution No. PC 052-2012 

Attachment 3: CEQA Notice of Exemption 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

62 



Teasley Minor Subdivision 

File No. 052-301-012; Case No. PMS 12-01 

Conditions of Approval 

Approval of the subdivision is conditioned upon the following terms and requirements 
which must be fulfilled before the Parcel Map may be recorded. 

1. Map Expiration: The approval of the Tentative Map shall expire 24 months after all appeal 
periods have lapsed. Approval may be extended in accordance with the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code and the Subdivision Map Act. 

2. Taxes: All taxes to which the property is subject shall be paid in full if payable, or secured if 
not yet payable to the satisfaction of the County's Tax Collector's Office, and all special 
assessments on the property must be paid or reapportioned to the satisfaction of the affected 
assessment district. Please contact the Tax Collector's Office approximately three to four 
weeks prior to filing the Final Map to satisfy this condition. 

4. Map Type: The applicant must cause to be filed a Parcel Map in accordance with the Final 
Map requirements of Section 16.10.120 et. seq. of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). The 
approved lot line adjustment shall be reflected on the Final Map. A subdivision map checking 
deposit of $500.00 shall be paid at the time the subdivision map is submitted for checking. 
County Recorder fees shall be paid prior to submittal of the map to the County recorder for 
filing. 

5. Improvement Plans: Pursuant to Section 16.25.060 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(RDMC) the applicant shall submit improvemenVconstruction plans for the required curb, gutter, 
sidewalk and paving. Improvement plans must be prepared by a Civil Engineer registered by 
the State of California. Improvement plans shall be on 24" x 36" sheets, unless otherwise 
approved by the City Engineer. 

The Improvement Plans shall be reviewed, signed as approved by Rio Dell Public Works 
Department. A plan checking deposit of $500.00 shall be paid at the time the Improvement 
Plans are submitted for checking. 

6. Unknown Improvements: Other on-site and/or off-site improvements may be required 
which cannot be determined from the Tentative Map at this time. These improvements, if any, 
will be determined after a complete review of the required Improvement Plans. 

7. Easements: All easements that encumber or are appurtenant to the subdivision shall be 
shown graphically on the Parcel Map. Those easements that do not have a metes and bounds 
description shall be noted on the Final Map and shown as to their approximate location. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25. 2012 

63 



8. Fees: The applicant shall pay the $50.00 CEQA Notice of Exemption filing fee (payable to 
the County of Humboldt) within five (5) days all other associated processing fees within 30 days 
of billing. 

9. Existing Accessory Structures: The existing accessory structures shall be relocated to 
comply with the required yard setbacks. 

Teasley Subdivision PC July 25, 2012 

64 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764·3532 

CITY Of 

~ DELL 

For Meeting of: September 27, 2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director 

Through: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

Date: September 22,2016 

Subject: Discussion of Cargo Containers used as Accessory Structures 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staffs report regarding the use of cargo/shipping containers used as accessory 
structures; and 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; 

3. Continue the discussion to the Planning Commission meeting of October 25, 2016. 

Background 

As previously reported, staff has been contacted a number of times 
the past few years from those who would like to place and utilize 
cargo/shipping containers on their parcels and those who have 
expressed concern regarding the visual appearance of cargo 
containers. The City does not currently have any reglJlations 

• regarding the use of cargo/shipping containers used as accessory 
structures. 

Millions of cargo/shipping containers have been manufactured in recent years to accommodate 
trade between North America and Asia. Used ones are plentiful and inexpensive. Not 
surprisingly, many property owners have found new uses for them as auxiliary storage 
buildings. Shipping containers are an increasingly common sight in the City and throughout the 
nation. In response many jurisdictions have enacted regulations regarding the placement and 
use of cargo/shipping containers the past few years to protect the character of neighborhoods 

Cargo Containers PC September 27, 2016 

65 



• 

and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety hazards, maintain and protect the 
visual qualities and property values of an area. 

It appears based on staffs review that larger urban communities do not allow cargo/shipping 
containers in residential zones. However, quite a few smaller urban and rural jurisdictions do 
allow one cargo/shipping container not exceeding 320 square feet in residential zones subject to 
some common general provisions, including: 

• A Building Permit is required; 
• A 3' x 6'-8" man door is required; 
• Lot must be developed with the primary residential use; 
• Unit must be placed on a gravel pad; 
• Placed on the rear half of the lot; 
• Must meet setback requirements; 
• Must not exceed allowable lot coverage; 
• Must be painted a solid neutral color (i.e. beige, taupe and browns) or a color( s) to 

match the residence; 
• Containers cannot be stacked; 

Some jurisdictions require additional provisions to ensure the residential character and 
compatibility of the neighborhood, including: 

• Be sited or screened so as not to be visible from any public or private road that directly 
abuts the subject parcel; or 

• Be sited behind the primary structure (residence) and not prominently visible from the 
street; 

• Limit the size to 160 square feet (8' x 20') on lots less than 10,000 square feet 

Staff is also recommending that cargo/shipping containers be allowed in all zones on a 
temporary basis when utilized during construction or grading operations for the site where 
located and when utilized solely for the storage of supplies and equipment that are used for 
construction or grading on that site. 

Staff is recommending that existing cargo containers in residential zones not be considered 
legal nonconfonning uses and that they be brought into compliance within 180 days after the 
effective date of the ordinance. 

In regards to the use of cargo/shipping containers in commercial zones, staff would recommend 
that they not be allowed in the Town Center (TC) zones other than on a temporary basis during 
construction or grading operations for the site where located and when utilized solely for the 
storage of supplies and equipment that are,used for construction or grading on that site . 

In Community Commercial (CC), Neighborhood Center (NC) and Industrial Commercial (IC) 
zones staff would recommend the following development standards: 

• Must be painted the same color as the building or a solid neutral color (i.e. beige, 
taupe and browns); and 

• Be sited behind the building and not prominently visible from the street; 

Corgo Contoiners PC Soptember 27, 2015 

66 



Staff will be recommending that Chapter 17.10, Definitions of the RDMC be amended to include 
the following definition of ·Cargo/Shipping Container": 

Cargo/Shipping Container means a container made of steel or similar material which is 
designed for securing and protecting items for transport or storage. CargO/Shipping containers 
include, but are not limited to, containers commonly used as shipping containers on ships and 
railroads, and/or tractor trailers, PODS (Portable On Demand Storage) and other similar units. 

Cargo Containers PC September 27, 2016 

67 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

TO: Planning Commissioners 

FROM: Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

THROUGH: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director 

DATE: September 27, 2016 

SUBJECT: Update of the Safety Element 

The draft Safety Element will be presented at the meeting. 

L'AlJlOftNA. 

68 


